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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

BRBMESRZRAERXA ([

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DA/

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the first listed beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has five beauty and slimming centres in Hong
Kong. All these centers are under two brand names “Sau San
Tong” (original brand of the Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015).
All these centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty
and slimming services, health management and anti-ageing
treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective treatments
and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes enable
customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body

shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group was honoured to
be the “Caring Company” for 10 consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and with
the additions of international famous brands.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AL

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and franchise co-operation business, the
Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class services to
our customers.

In order to fully utilise the idle funds of the Group, the Group has
expanded in several new business segments in recent years.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the

Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 2 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium
sized corporations which include both listed and non-listed
corporations and businessmen in various industries. The money
lending business will diversify the income stream of the Group
and broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the capital use
of the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company and
its shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
AEEMBEREE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—g-=#% —E-—F —E-ZF —E-NEF —E-N\§
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET THET FET FET
Revenue & 1,561,356 1,793,826 1,359,223 2,423,176 2,607,987
Cost of sales HERA (1,424,185) (1,649,340) (1,252,818) (2,296,714) (2,362,517)
Gross profit EY ] 137,171 144,486 106,405 126,462 245,470
Other revenue and Hilz R 11,227 10,198 10,184 6,196 6,520
other gains or losses HEtwhamhEe
Selling and distribution costs 5% & 7 $5 A A (46,578) (53,908) (57,473) (84,978) (97,948)
General and administrative —BRITBRAY (82,331) (106,279 (94,669) (116,980) (116,783)
expenses
Profit/(loss) from operations && %%,/ (EE) 19,489 (5,503) (35,558) (69,300) 37,259
Finance costs BERKA (441) (893) (1,871) (2,712) (4,382)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AIHEF,/ 19,048 (6,396) (37,424) (72,012) 32,877
(F#8)
Income tax expense FrE8AX (5,156) (10,189) (9,434) (13,700) (13,771)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BR) 13,892 (16,585) (46,858) (85,712) 19,106
Non-current assets IRBEE 135,165 137,367 194,973 156,591 173,784
Current assets RBEE 826,032 845,408 854,060 919,924 1,152,906
Current liabilities RBAE (140,033) (168,192) (220,144) (196,873) (331,503)
Net current assets RBEERE 685,999 677,216 633,916 723,051 821,403
Non-current liabilities kRBEE (1,154) (6,299) (14,735) (3,888) (4,163)
Net assets HEERFH 820,010 808,284 814,154 875,754 991,024
Capital and reserves BEXAREE
Equity attributable to owners 5B R AR 7 807,443 800,276 818,773 860,960 960,152
of the Company BEANER
Non-controlling interests IR ER 12,567 8,008 (4,619) 14,794 30,872
Total equity BnAE 820,010 808,284 814,154 875,754 991,024
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year Under
Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).

2022 was a challenging year for the Group and the entire retalil
and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The outbreak of COVID-19 was
continuing to affect the economy which slowed down the global
production and hampered the international trade. Also, the
outbreak of COVID-19 worsened the situation over the world. In
particular, Hong Kong experienced several waves of COVID-19
pandemic and the pandemic remained volatile. The travel
restriction, labour shortage and a series of mandatory quarantine
measures brought the retail and service industry into a huge
contraction.

The gross domestic production (the “GDP”) of China grew by 8.1%
in 2021 compared to 2.3% in 2020. Yet the growth was uneven
among different sectors. Retails sales segment has been noted a
drop off. Our group’s distribution sales of cosmetic and skin care
products segment in the PRC has been inevitably affected. The
GDP of Hong Kong grew by 7.2% in 2021 compared to -5.9% in
2020. The beauty and slimming business was recovering and the
performance was slightly improved.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the
Group has also proactively identified different opportunities of
acquisitions and development.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BHEERS

Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 22
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, the Group has long been upholding
its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’ needs in
a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner, abiding by
industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau San Tong has
been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by side with its
customers! Establishing the market leading position is a hard-
earned achievement. We will continue to adhere to the Group’s
principles, conduct and service attitude while introducing new
elements by launching innovative treatments and products,
leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the legends
of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management team
puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development
in the long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a
prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates
its care for the community, supports various welfare activities
and sets up a voluntary team to participate in various voluntary
services. For a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has
been awarded the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our
continuous care and support to the society.

Looking ahead into 2022, Hong Kong and the PRC economy
and retail business are believed to be challenging. The
continuing impact of COVID-19 could pose many uncertainties
to the business environment. The Group will remain cautious
to the incoming challenges and strive to capture any business
opportunities available. We will continue to examine the situation
carefully and adjust the Group’s development and investment
strategies in the effort of diversifying its business, which in
turn will enable us to respond to the ever-changing market
environment and maximise the interests of the Group and our
shareholders as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERS

Financial Review

In respect of the financial performance during the Year
Under Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from
approximately HK$1,793,826,000 in the previous year to
approximately HK$1,561,356,000 in the Year Under Review,
representing a 13.0% of decrease.

Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under Review was
approximately HK$137,171,000, with a decrease of approximately
HK$7,315,000 as compared with approximately HK$144,486,000
for the same period last year. The decrease in overall revenue was
mainly due to the decrease in revenue from the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products. Revenue from distribution
sale of cosmetic and skin care products decreased from
approximately HK$1,715,144,000 of last year to approximately
HK$1,476,008,000 of the Year Under Review. The decrease
of revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products outweighed the increase of revenue from the provision
of beauty and slimming services. The revenue from the provision
of beauty and slimming services increased from approximately
HK$53,771,000 of last year to approximately HK$60,695,000 of
the Year Under Review.

During the Year Under Review, general and administrative
expenses amounted to HK$82,331,000 representing a decrease
of approximately 22.5% or HK$23,948,000 from approximately
HK$106,279,000 for the same period last year. The selling and
distribution cost decreased by 13.6% or HK$7,330,000 from
approximately HK$53,908,000 in last year to approximately
HK$46,578,000 of the Year Under Review.

In a view of improved cost control, the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$26,420,000 of last
year has been changed to the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$8,952,000 of the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BHEERS

Appreciation

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board
and our hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their valuable
contributions and strong support for the Group. We will continue
to provide the market with high quality service and adopt the most
stringent controls and adaptable strategies to drive the Group’s
business development in the long term. With our persistent
dedication and relentless efforts, | am confident that the Group is
able to overcome any obstacle ahead and adhere to its vision and
mission to bring rewarding returns to all shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Business Review

In 2021, the GDP growth in China and Hong Kong were 8.1%
and 7.2% respectively, indicating a moderate economic growth.
Yet, the growth was uneven among different sectors. Retail
segment showed less satisfactory results. Further, the COVID-19
pandemic is still affecting the world in different extent, though
the COVID-19 becomes less urgent than at any time in the past
two years. Another wave of COVID-19 came in the first quarter
of 2022 in Hong Kong and certain areas of China. The business
activities were inevitably affected. In the first quarter of 2022,
the GDP growth in China and Hong Kong were 4.8% and -3.6%
respectively, which suggested that the economy was still volatile.

For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,561,356,000, representing a decrease
of 13.0% from approximately HK$1,793,826,000 of last year.
This was mainly attributable to the decrease of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products by approximately
HK$239,136,000. The business of distribution sales of cosmetic
and skin care products of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales
Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”) recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$1,476,008,000, representing a decrease of 13.9% from
approximately HK$1,715,144,000 of last year. China suffered
from the COVID-19 outbreak and implemented a strict lockdown
measures. The business activities were affected and most
operation in Shanghai was suspended. The retail sales generated
by Dong Fang dropped accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEwR DT

The decrease of revenue was partially offset by the increase
of revenue of provision of beauty and slimming services. The
revenue from provision of beauty and slimming services increased
from approximately HK$53,771,000 of last year to approximately
HK$60,695,000 of the Year Under Review. The outbreak of
COVID-19 and a series of mandatory quarantine measures
were continuing to influence the operating environment and
consumer sentiments in the beauty industry. The Group’s beauty
and slimming centres were suspended for approximately three
months, though shorter than five months last year. The Group’s
performance was unavoidably affected to some extent in the
Year Under Review. Nevertheless, the Group is positive that the
performance of the Group is improved by riding on the industry
leadership and sound reputation and customer confidence it has
built over the years. The Group is well geared to go through the
incoming challenges and remain competitive in the industry.

The interest income from money lending business slightly
decreased approximately from HK$9,452,000 of last year to
approximately HK$8,239,000 of the Year Under Review. The
decrease of interest income arose from a number of loans were
settled during the Year Under Review. In light of uncertain market
conditions, the Group remained prudent and cautiously monitored
the development of the Group’s money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Profit for the year was approximately HK$13,892,000 as compared
with loss for the year of approximately HK$16,585,000 of last
year. The Group adopted a stringent cost controls on the selling
and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses.
They were recorded approximately HK$128,909,000 in total in
the Year Under Review, representing a decrease by approximately
HK$31,278,000 from approximately HK$160,187,000 in total last
year.

As at 31 March 2022, cash and bank balances was approximately
HK$432,054,000 (2021: approximately HK$466,139,000),
whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities) was 5.90:1 (2021: 5.03:1), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year Under Review, Hong Kong experienced several
waves of COVID-19 pandemic. Though the COVID-19 became
less urgent than at any time in the past two years, the business
activities were affected in certain extent. However, the effect
brought by COVID-19 pardemic was alleviated through the
promotion of vaccination by Hong Kong government. The shorter
suspension period of beauty and slimming centres in the Year
Under Review drives the revenue increased by 12.0% compare to
last year.

The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong. With extensive experience in the
industry and committed efforts for innovations, the Group has
continuously introduced sophisticated services and products
of the highest quality for its customers, winning the long-term
favour of its customers for its beauty and slimming products
and services while successfully establishing brand advantages
and customer loyalty. To further fortify its leading position in the
industry, the Group has introduced a number of new beauty,
slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the
Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed by
the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards
over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong. It was
strongly trusted by its customers. With increasingly intensive
market competition, some industry players have resorted to all
possible means including dishonest sales methods to secure
their market shares. Coupled with various beauty and slimming
incidents during recent years and seriously weak and outdated
government supervision, customer confidence has been impaired.
This, however, has at the same time encouraged the customer
demand for quality beauty and slimming services. In view of this,
the Group will continue to provide quality products and services.
Maintaining the strategy of winning with quality, the Group will
continue to leverage on its professional and outstanding beauty
and slimming technologies, bring its brand visibility to the full
play, and operate with honest and honour, in order to win over the
consumers’ trust, secure a wider business coverage in the high-
end market and thereby realise sustainable growth and return.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets,
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-Il business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongging city (8 provinces and cities
in total). In the Year Under Review, the business of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products of Dong Fang recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$1,476,008,000, representing
a decrease of 13.9% from approximately HK$1,715,144,000
of last year. China suffered from the COVID-19 outbreak and
implemented a strict lockdown measures. The business activities
were affected and most operation in Shanghai was suspended.
The retail sales recorded in Dong Fang dropped accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWMR D

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing
in the development and introduction of products embedding
advanced technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio
of health and beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its
customers a wider array of sophisticated product choices. This
will in turn further enhance the attraction of the brand name Sau
San Tong and ensure the Group’s leading market position.

Going forward, the Group will continue to launch different safe
and effective products that meet the different needs of its
customers, helping them to achieve beauty in a healthy way.
We believe that the segment of distribution of health and beauty
products will continue to make a stable contribution to the
Group’s results in the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong
brand visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous
market in the PRC back in early 2004. The Group established the
uniqueness of the brand and identified ourselves as a leader in
the slimming and beauty industry. Since the efforts to developing
the franchise cooperation business in full sail since December
2010, we have entered into a number of franchise co-operation
contracts as at 31 March 2022. The existing number of franchise
co-operation shops put our brand on the top position in the
beauty and slimming industry in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-
and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and
other recognised securities markets in the overseas as well as
wealth management products purchased from banks and other
financial institutions, with a view to generate additional income
outside its retail business, to widen its revenue base and minimise
the risks of the Group on the overall, in order to enhance the
capital use of the Company as well as the overall interests of the
Company and its shareholders. This new segment of securities
investments has good contribution to the revenue and profit
of the Group in the Year Under Review. During the Year Under
Review, the Group has recorded a net gain of approximately
HK$14,882,000 from its investments in the Hong Kong stock
market and unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong compared
with net gain of approximately HK$13,430,000 last year. The
investment portfolio included investments in a variety of industries
including construction, real estates, internet service, retailing,
food and beverage, finance, industry and education, with the
objective of minimising the risks while maximising the return. As
at 31 March 2022, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to approximately HK$97,218,000.

Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group engaged in money lending in order to
better utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns. The
Group is a legitimate money lender licenced in Hong Kong
under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance. The
Group’s targeted corporations, which are small to medium sized
corporations including both listed and non-listed corporations,
and businessmen in various industries mainly acquired through
business referrals and introductions.

HHERERE

REEZTEDR AEEBR_ZE—HF=A
FAEEHFREEB 2H>H MAXRE ZH
EESEERAREGHIRE FRRAEERE
SNEMRBAIBEM S 2 EWES U RMAETT
LEMeREERSE CWEEEER REZT
EEBUNN 2 A - RN = E T B R
WEREEZ ZERK REARNFZERE
A YRAARBRERR ZEERNZ L
BHEBREDHTRABBEFEE SNSRI KA
MERATBER- RNACBEFE AKERE
REAEREMBREARINKRLETRAES
A BB FEEH14,882,0008 70 © = F
Bl & U 25 )F 58 4913,430,000/8 Lo I B A B
BETSEZERE BEEE WE BB
R Z&€ KR - em 1¥ HFETE
BRERERERE RoREER - KN_F
ZZF=ZA=+—H BATEFABRZZS
B & E 497,218,000 JT °

HER®

AN AEBUEEREES LS A" HE
EESHREII DR - AEB AR EBRER
BAGOEZREZEEZBEA-AKENBR
HRAPNUEX (BREEMRIFELHRE)
AR TERBEBENAREHZTEEBA

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Loan applications are reviewed by the Group with a series of
due diligence work to assess the credit worthiness of applicants
and their financial ability for loan repayments. Due diligence
performed by the Group involves know your client (“KYC”)
procedures including obtaining information as to source and
amount of income, proof of other net assets, ID copy, address
proof, etc. The loan terms would be arrived at after considering
a combination of factors including prevalent market rates, the
financial strength of the applicants, the collaterals offered and
past credit history of the applicants with the Group.

Monitoring of loan repayment and recovery are a continuing
task of the Group. The Group has regularly communicated with
borrowers regarding their financial condition and search through
publicly available information to ascertain whether the borrowers
have any difficulty in making repayment on time.

The Group provided both secured and unsecured loans with
terms ranging from several months to 2 years. The Group
has recorded revenue of approximately HK$8,239,000 for
the Year Under Review. As at 31 March 2022, the loans and
interest receivables from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$101,421,000.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance
for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on loan receivable in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.
Details of the ECL model are disclosed in the notes of the
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEET W N

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, the following factors

have been taken into consideration:

collateral ratio (if any);

- amount of actual shortfall;

- time of delay in payment;

- responsive to the Group’s request in repayment after

maturity of loan; and

- external market indicators that are expected to cause a

significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt

obligation.

In particular, based on the ECL assessment for the Year Under

Review, the Group has made provision for several borrowers,

which are set out in the following tables.

Means of
Name of Relationship introduction
relevant Client with the Group to the Group
RALEEL
HEEF AR HAEECHE BN
Relevant Client 1 Independent By referral
third party
HEEF1 BYEZH BN

Date of
agreement

[E R

20/2/2019

“E-NE
—A=tH

Terms of
the loan

EXAR

6 months

ERfEEEERENRRE AEBEZERET
(ESE

- EfmiE(WA):

- HAKRERERIBREBRERHEE

- FEHESHERAMEENBEEAS
{LE SN TR 4 o

Hep-READBEFENABEEBERNMG
AEBCHBRIERAFIRERS ABBRLE
TRATR -

Outstanding
amount
HK$'000 Interest rate  Due diligence performed
(Note) per annum by the Group
AEESH
FAT
(Het) ERZE  ZEBETZERNE
3,511 6%  Full KYC procedures

including obtaining
information as to source
and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
BREFEHERR
BREERRARER
SHER SHRIER
it EH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Outstanding
Means of amount
Name of Relationship introduction Date of Terms of HKS$'000 Interest rate  Due diligence performed
relevant Client with the Group to the Group agreement the loan (Note) per annum by the Group
KEESHE
RALKEZ FAT
HEEF£R HAREZEE 251 1A H EXRAR (Hiz) FRE AREETZERAL
Relevant Client 2 Independent By referral 3/6/2019 3 months 2,025 15%  Full KYC procedures
third party including obtaining
information as to source
and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
HEEF2 BYE=H N ZE-hF 38R BEEFEHERE
ABZH BEEDRAREREHER
SREE AR E
Relevant Client 3 Independent By referral 21/7/2018 12 months 1,620 12%  Full KYC procedures including
third party obtaining information as to
source and amount of
income, ID copy and
address proof
HEEF3 BU%E=F ®N —E-N\F 12188 BEEFEHZER
tA=+-8 BREERUARRREEER

SORAARMILRS

Note: The amount represents the outstanding principal balance with accrued M7 ZREBENR ST -_—_F=-A=+—HZKEE
interest as at 31 March 2022 REERKETFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W N D

Outstanding

Name of relevant Client amount

HEEFEE REELHE

HK$’000

FE T

Relevant Client 1 3,511
HEZEF1

Relevant Client 2 2,025
HEEF2

Amount of

provision

during the

year ended

31 March 2022
BEE-—ZFE—-——

=H=+—H

LtFEz2RBESHE

HK$’000

FET

3,471

2,013

Collateral

and/or

guarantee

obtained Event leading to impairments
ik Xod

EHRR B

ER BYREZSEH

No The loan receivable remained
at stage 2 as at 31 March
2022. The loan was past
due. During the year,
the interest payments
beyond the maturity
were received and part
of principal was repaid.
The request of delaying
the final repayment of the
loan and negotiation of
interest payments lead the
impairment. The Group
has received the interest
payments on time after
communicating with the
Relevant Client C.

i3 R-ZB-_—F=A=+—-H0 K
WERDMERE2RR - ER
EEB-FR BWEHFE
AR AAECHEERS X
S HEEEEBERER -HENRN
ERREBEAEXNNER
BYRE-AKEEEABRE
FCEREACDERFBWRERNE -

No The loan receivable remained
at stage 2 as at 31 March
2022. The loan was past
due but the interest
payments beyond the
maturity were received.
The long overdue period
leads to further provision.
The outstanding amount
was subsequently settled
in full.

i R-ZB-_-—F=A=+—-H K
WERDMERE2RR - BER
gEi e WERAaPE AN
ME -REBHEIE DS
REB REESHEARY

B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Amount of
provision Collateral
during the and/or

Outstanding year ended guarantee
Name of relevant Client amount 31 March 2022 obtained Event leading to impairments
BE-T-C ik Xopd
=ZA=+-8 EHFRIER =R
HBEEFERB REESH LTFEZBHESE ER BYREZEH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Relevant Client 3 1,620 1,605 No The loan receivable was

reclassified from stage 2
to stage 3. The loan and
interest payment were
past due. Part of interest
payments were received
but the Relevant Client
C failed to settle the
remaining interest in a
timely manner. The Group
communicated with the
Relevant Client C. The
Group gradually received
outstanding interest
payments after year end
and the progress of interest
settlement was improved.
HEEF3 i EWERCHF2BRERDE
EFEIRR -ERRAEXN
caf s WmBosAE B
HEEFCRERKGEMNEAT
ME -FEBEZHEMEBARTFC
ETBR - AEERFRERE
BWBRGHE BERFFE
WEEERXE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Outlook

The Group’s performance was improved in the Year Under
Review. Yet, the Group will remain cautious to the volatile
business environment and the economy. The Group will continue
to consistently maintain a positive attitude to explore, research
and develop more sophisticated and effective health and beauty
products and professional treatments, in order to meet the
pursuit and demand for beauty and health by the ladies in Hong
Kong and China and in turn achieve stable growth and enhance
the performance of the Group’s core business. Meanwhile, the
Group is also devoted to the training of its people, and has
specifically devised training courses targeted at the employees of
the franchise co-operation shops on the mainland market, with
the aim to ensure the consistence in the quality of operation and
services of the beauty, slimming and spa centres across different
places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate
and timely investments in securities, money lending and
properties, with the objectives of generating additional return,
broadening its revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital
use and further promote the performance of the Group in different
areas. The Group will meticulously select sound investments with
high return potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate
on bringing its strengths, customer base, reputation and other
advantages into full play in order to actualise stable growth
of its core business. This will be complemented with careful
investments in the effort to bring along more rewarding returns to
our investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional
training to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for its outstanding products
and services, the Group was honoured to be the “Caring
Company” for ten consecutive years.

Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its
yearning for physical perfection.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2022 were approximately
HK$432,054,000 compared to approximately HK$466,139,000
as at 31 March 2021. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0% (2021:
0%), based on total of bank loans of HK$Nil (2021: HK$Nil)
and the net assets of approximately HK$820,010,000 (2021:
approximately HK$808,284,000). As at 31 March 2022, liability of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$141,187,000 (2021:
approximately HK$174,491,000), including trade and other
payables of approximately HK$128,476,000 (2021: approximately
HK$144,145,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of our
subsidiary, Dong Fang and contract liabilities of approximately
HK$3,412,000 (2021: approximately HK$11,601,000). The
decrease of trade and other payables was consistent of
decrease of revenue. The liability was intended to be financed by
internal resources of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group
represented by a ratio of current assets over current liabilities
was 5.90:1 (2021: 5.08:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial
resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s trade receivable was maintained
at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and to ensure
the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has no
investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting

FREsCERE

AEBR_ZE—+tF=ZA=ZBTRKHR E4L

in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the  Fff 1§ Ft I8 /% 58 49352,000,0007% 7T ° Ff 15 7k 18
use of proceeds is as follows: BB zHFEBOT:
Actual
amount
Actual utilised Actual
The total amount  during the amount  Unutilised
allocation utilised up year ended utilised as balance as  Expected timeline for
of the net to 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March unutilised net proceeds
Use of net proceeds proceeds 2021 2022 2022 2022 as at 31 March 2021
Bz
EE -B-Zf i i
—E--F = ZEB--f ZE-ZF
=B =t-H =R = R=-B=-f%
fFE% =t-B Lt¥Ez =+-A =t-B Z=ZA=t+-8H
HREEz 2E2BA B8R ZE2EA ZEEX ZERBAMBHRE
FRREFEAR FEAE EBERSE BREE HBREE DRLEH FEBEIRBER
Use of net proceeds
REREFERR
Acquisition of commercial, industrial 116 16 4.4 20.4 95.6 By 31 December 2023
and residential properties situated ZEZ=F+ZA=+—HH
in the PRC and Hong Kong
(“Properties Acquisition”)
KBARPEREENEE IXER
EEmE(TxRKE])
Repayment of the outstanding amount 20 20 S 20 = =
due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan,
Shirley under the Convertible Note
ENATARERETEMREREL
X RERNFE
Development of the Group’s money 78 51.4 26.6 78 S
lending business
BRASECREXY
Renovation of offices and shops in 60 8.7 3.2 11.9 48.1 By 31 December 2023
the PRC and Hong Kong ZEZ=EF+ZA=+—HA
BB REERRERES
Development of securities 30 30 S 30 S
investment business
RREFRERD
General working capital 48 33.2 14.8 48 S
—REEESE
Total 352 159.3 49 208.3 143.7
@zt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

In light of uncertain market conditions currently, the Board
considers that it will be essential for the Group to cautiously
control the pace, scale and scope of the Properties Acquisition
and the development of the Group’s money lending business
given the uncertainties casted by the COVID-19 pandemic and
the global economic and financial markets.

Note:

The expected timelines for utilising the remaining net proceeds is based on
the best estimation of the present and future business market situations
made by the Group. It may be subject to further change based on the future
development of the market conditions.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$820,010,000 compared to approximately
HK$808,284,000 as at 31 March 2021.
trade receivables have been pledged for certain banking facilities
of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. There are no other
charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

No bank deposits and

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 225 (2021: 232) employees.
During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$57,660,000 (2021:
HK$59,282,000).

approximately

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DT

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate of 5,253,458
outstanding options allow the subscription of 5,253,458 shares
of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
24 February 2016.

Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty
and slimming services and products into necessities, coupled
with the continued growth of the middle class, the demand
for quality products and services will remain on the upward
momentum. As such, the Group will continue to spare no efforts
in the development and introduction of different sophisticated and
innovative treatment, products and machines of supreme quality
to nurture our portfolio of services and products into one that is
diversified, accommodated to market demands and attractive to
new customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach
under the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating
environment at present.

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong,
the Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different
social media platforms in order to increase the awareness of the
younger generation for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO,
and thereby broaden the Group’s customer base.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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Directors
Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 34, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a
member of the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui has
extensive experience in corporate finance, corporate restructuring
and securities investment. He worked in Corporate Restructuring
Services department of an international accounting firm. He is a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Mui is a Vice Chairperson of Yan Oi Tong.
Mr. Mui holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
General Finance and a Master of Arts degree in Philosophy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin (“Mr. Chan”), aged 43, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in September 2017. He is also the chairman
of nomination Committee. He also holds directorships in various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a degree in Bachelor of Arts in 2001
and has obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Education from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Chan has over
13 years of experience in education and investment. Mr. Chan
has the following Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
certificates: Dealing in Securities, Derivatives, Corporate Finance
and Asset Management. Mr. Chan is currently the Court Member
of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the Standing
Committee of the University of Hong Kong Convocation.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 58, is a Non-executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2016, holds a bachelor
degree of Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He
has over 15 years’ experience in foreign equities investment. He
was the investment manager of several investment funds in Japan
including Yasuda Trust & Banking Corporation Limited and Fuji
Investment Management Company Limited. He also specialises
in merger and acquisitions and his clients cover major reputable
Japan corporations. Mr. Togo has been serving as an Executive

Director of a trading company in Tokyo since 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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Independent Non-executive Director

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged
73, joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent
Non-executive Director, and also as a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Ms. Chiu has many years of banking
experience in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. She was
Senior Vice President at the Republic National Bank of New York
and was responsible for the management and investment of
third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu is an associate and a fellow
of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Ms. Chiu was appointed as
a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong Government in 1992
and as Cavaliere by the ltalian Government in 1999 and she is
Montblanc Outstanding Business Lady of the year 2002 in Hong
Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime Investments Group
Limited. She is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
CPM Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1932) and China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1515). Ms. Chiu is licensed
to carry out asset management business under Type 9 regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571,
Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 42, is an
Independent Non-executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is the chairman of the audit committee,
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He has over 19 years of working
experience in accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring
and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree
of business administration from City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also is a Certified Public Accountant in
Washington State, USA. Mr. Lau is the company secretary and
the Executive Director of Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1679) and the independent Non-executive Director of
Xinming China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2699).
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Mr. AU Siu Lun (“Mr. Au”), aged 45, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and joined the Group in May 2020. He
is the member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a degree in Finance in 1998, Mr. Au has over 23
years of working experience in finance, information technology
and strategic planning for enterprises. He is the Co-founder and
Chairman of a FinTech company which is the member of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, located in California, US.

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 38, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in December
2015 and is responsible for the overall management, business
strategy and development of the Group. She is also involved in
the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s policies. Dr.
Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the International
American University, U.S.A. and has more than 17 years of
experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr. Kwan has
served as the management of a beauty and slimming company
in Hong Kong and is an Honorary President of the Hong Kong
Beauty & Wellness Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BEEARE

Introduction

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term
interest of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2022, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2 and A.2.7

Code provision A.2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the
Board. The Company does not have the chairman of the Board
and hence does not compiled with code provision. The Company
has two executive directors who have performed part of the
function of the chairman of the Board.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The
Company does not have the chairman of the Board of directors.
The management of the Company considered that it was
unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to let
the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views to
all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the
management of the Company always welcomes all Independent
Non-executive Directors to communicate with them directly via
email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time
to time.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The term of office for non-executive directors is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.
At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. As such, the Company considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objective of this
code provision.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr.
Au Siu Lun being the Independent Non-executive Directors,
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21
September 2021.

Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall
provide all members of the board with monthly updates.
Management considers that quarterly updates and periodic
instant updates when developments arising out of the ordinary
business instead of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board
to discharge its duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review,
the Executive Directors have provided, and will continue to
provide, to all Independent Non-executive Directors updates
on any material changes to the position and prospects of the
Company, which are considered to be sufficient to provide
general updates of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to the Board and allow them to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the same to serve the purpose
required by the code provision C.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2022.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2022, the Board comprised of six Directors,
including two Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition
of the Board during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun
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The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors which is more than half of the Board.
They are professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 31 to 33.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility
with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the
Year Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
material financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts
for approval by the Board before publication, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate internal control systems and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-—
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a
Director has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her
interest and abstains from voting.

M IREMA T ELB I 2E8 RS
VIHMTEEARAEAMTRATERANEAR

AR

EFEeERERYEBETABER (R
% Rk HMER AEBEBEER)

SEEY RS

i%AﬁEﬁ%&Lﬂﬁ@ FRMAREF
LEOMAEHEE U (EFE)EMA
&Wﬁ&%@%ﬁ UERFwmAERZARAR
KB -2REFEREACESSTHSRA
M EEHERKeRERTwEREANZSEHE
BREBABETHEESRHEANAEEE
BEBRER AR -ARAWEGHELFHFEY
CENE URTFEZLAARIERBRZ
R TRCLHRERXARERRAITET
FBESEAHEREERRIERSE MZEY
BEBRELABENEB R T HER-

EENETHERERASKBEVEXER &
AEARAXN(NFE) - REBNEES
B HMARAZEERRAEET S LE
NETR FHREFEAREZTESELTHR
MEFBEBEAARBZREE - U ESRMNEF
RZBIUFPTEERELFESE UREF
REE- RHEFERREEFNEAEZIRS
TEEMNEER AEHESFARRENG
THRERR-

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&



40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BEEARE

Five meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

FREFEHEBETOAREZ -BEFLFE
FeeR2BERHEINNT:

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors BEENS HiE EITEBRH HE =
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Mui Wai Sum SEBREE 5/5 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR R o A 5/5 100%
Non-executive Director FHTEE

Mr. Takashi Togo RMELTELE 5/5 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITES

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HeHaZ+ 5/5 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RERLEE 5/5 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun @ JK 1 ot & 5/5 100%

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-executive Director is not
appointed for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election at
the AGM of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Mui Wai Sum shall
retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. The
above retiring Director, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board and
the Nomination Committee recommended his reappointment.
The Company’s circular, to be sent to the Shareholders, contains
detailed information of the above Director as required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance
The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and
officers.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr.
Chan Ka King and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s
business development and daily management and operation
generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung,
Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is chaired by Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. No member of the Audit Committee is a
member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature
and scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, and was
satisfied that the accounting policies and standards of the
Group complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

BERZBQ I ERBERBEIRNTIIRE:
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El’q ' %*2%%%*/\$f?£)ﬂ%*§%°xlﬂz%ﬁ
ZEEQBIBEREIWT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHSE HiE BITEBRH HE =R
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (Chairman) QEREE () 5/5 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy i hcia il 5/5 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun EPIS=ra 5/5 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is chaired by
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Director and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the
Non-executive Director and senior management of the Company.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHSE HE,EBITEBERE HE =
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (Chairman) # &84+ (/&) 1/1 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RERLEE 1/1 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun % JK @ 5 4 1/1 100%
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Chan Ka Kin and all Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Au Siu Lun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the
year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

FREZE

FRN REZE@HBIT-REZ -EKEH
Eee:
= =]

SR ZBERHEINWT

Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHS HEEBITEERH HE =R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 1/1 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR A& 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITES

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HeHz+ 1/1 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE 1/1 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun @ JK @ 5t A 1/1 100%
Corporate Governance Functions EERBEE

No corporate governance committee of the Company has
been established and the Board as a whole is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties including: (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe
that they have complied all applicable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group. As
at 31 March 2022, the Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties or events which may have a significant impact on
the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business
activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities
in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,300,000
and fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$305,000.
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Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates
such documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a
timely manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements
and information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to
maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board
Committee meetings.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary in 2020. Mr. Chan is an employee of the
Company and confirmed that he has complied with all the
qualifications, experience and training requirements as required by
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing Rules and in the opinion
of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses the necessary qualification and
experience, and is capable of performing of the functions of the
Company Secretary.

Mr. Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Reporting Period.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid—
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.
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Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: Room 2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed
“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)”
above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available
to shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.
sst-holding.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which
not less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.
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Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of
applying and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review
and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the
basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments.
Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote

and improve our transparency are also welcome.
Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions
on risk management and internal control as set out in the CG
Code. The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group. The systems are designed to manage
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.
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The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form
of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 33 on pages 202 to 207 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO" brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 13
to 30 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
directors’ report.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022, and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 76 to 212.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non- controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 6. The summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on page
138.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26(a) to the financial statements on
pages 166 to 168.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive directors and independent
non- executive directors) of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted.
No option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable
upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board
in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.
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Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31
March 2022 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

FHEIET ZBREZESFENT

HE T -_—_F-A=Z+—HUIEFEEBERE

At
Subscription At Granted Cancelled 31 March
price 1 April 2021 during during the 2022
Date of grant Exercisable period pershare RZZZ-% the period period R-ZF-_F
REAH g SRABE mA-A HRRi BAZE =B=1-H
HK$
BT
Directors E% 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 2,251,482 - - 2,251,482
9 February 2026
ZZ--£-A+H “2--%-ATHE
ZEZREZANA
Chief Executive Officer 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
THEH 9 February 2026
ZZ--£-A+H “2--%-ATHE
ZEZREZANA
Employess [E & 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 1,500,988 - - 1,500,988
9 February 2026
ZZ--£-A+H “2--%-ATHE
ZEZREZANA
Other participant 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
e 9 February 2026
ZZ--£-A+H “2--%-ATHE
ZEZREZANA
5,253,458 - - 5,253,458
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.87 HK$0.87
MEFHTEE 087 0.87HTT
Weighted average of remaining contractual life 4.87 years 3.87 years
BT O FH 4.87% 387F
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Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Year.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$477,448,000 (2021:
HK$475,967,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 132 to 137.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
31(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

fR SR £ 10 5

fr EXTRERCHEET 8l — SR 2 A A BB
AR &N ARBERFARBETLRFER
REN A

o] 73 f

BERSHEFR22EQNREX(—AN—FF
Bl= &tz RIEE]) AR ZRMHEER
EHBBRUDEKTHRE- R_ZT=__F=A4
=+—B ARARADRERTFARA KRR
2L BATT 448,000 T (—ZF — —4F:
475,967,000/ 7T ) °

2 EER

AEBHE-_Z_—_F=-A=+—HILEFEZ
DEBE R HNF1REFITHEH 2R A M KR
FHMIFE10 -

FEXS

RBE-_T-_—_FZA=Z+—BHLFEZHSL
ISR R A1) BEZ [HMEEALR
S W T ERGEMEMHRAE T 2BER H K
BEBERS-



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ES=EWRE

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred
Mr. Au Siu Lun

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mui Wai Sum will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and
Mr. Au Siu Lun as at the date of this annual report and therefore
still considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 31 to 33.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional
items of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of HK$360,000 for all of them for the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

7 ke

FR ENIENEERSREEA B K
ERTHEHE :

Number of Number of senior

Directors management

EEHE EREEAESHE

HK$NiIl to HK$1,000,000 % 7L £1,000,000 & T - 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & T £2,000,000 & T - 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /& 7T £3,000,000 & 7T S =

HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 /& 7T £4,000,000 & JT - 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 &L £5,000,000 & 7T = =
Directors’ Interests in Contracts EECEHORES

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company: RELGHER G ZFE -
Share Option Scheme BRI E

AR AAR R D 2 #E 2K BRI AN R ) RE AR
AERTARREEREREEABZBEE

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors and senior management of

60

the Company under the Company’s share option scheme, details

of which are as follows:

HFERBWT:

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying  issued share
shares of the capital
Name of director/ Subscription Company F NN
chief executive price ;NN BRITRAE
EE/FETHA Date of grant Exercisable period per share HERA 2 B2 8
BHE RHBEH TEH BRAEE FREH BOW
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
BEELE —E-—%-A+H 9 February 2026 0.87/87C
—Z_—f¥-A+B%E
ZE-RF-ANA
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
BIER AL —E-—-%-A+H 9 February 2026 0.87% 7T
“EZ-—%_-f+HZE
—T-RF¥-ANA
Mr. Chan Ka Kin 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
BRREEEE —T-—%-R+H 9 February 2026 0.87H T
—Z-—%-f+HZ
—E-_R"¥-ANA
Mr. Takashi Togo 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
e ke —E-—%-A+H 9 February 2026 0.87/8 T
—Z_—f¥-_A+B%E
ZE-RFANA
Note: it

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief
Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2022, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

BREXHBEEN RZTBE__F=A=+—
B ARRIEF FETRABSEZAZH
SALBERARRREEBEZE (ERRE
7 R ERPIEXVER) Z B - A E R
BRBREBEESRBPERIIE2GREFEZ
Za A - R IRGEM T # Bl 8£5.46£5.67
GAIAAAR AR EFTETRIZRERERANS
ARR R ZEA Rk AR HE A #E
MIORR - MAMEG AR A R BEZFe

FTERRARO 2 ERRAR

X

RZFB__F=ZA=1t—H RARREMFE
FERTETRAEMA TIHEZREESF R
HEROIEXVERFE2REID BATRE R
BREEIBEREARARAD ETRAE%RHK
bz HARENRIEE S KB &M
FEHRMEFELREECMIMAERR A
FEWT

RROGZIFE

Number of shareholding

BR#EAE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR 514 &l BTt
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 10,979,000 14.63%

E/l_;\'/:\T2

BEmDBEAA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person,
other than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive
of the Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares”
above, has registered an interest or short position in the share
capital, underlying shares and debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which compete or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued share as required under the GEM
listing rules throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date
of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 34 to 51.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have significant events after the
reporting period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.9% (2021: 99.2%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 98.7% (2021: 99.0%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 12.8% (2021: 15.0%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,679,000 (2021: HK$657,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 31 March 2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VLGl

@ bakertilly
PN e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

EEEZRBERAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 76 to 212, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BESEERARAFAZEERR
ZBURBMKRE

(REEHEZMALZ ERAF)
R

AizBE (A TEREIERM)CEXRES
CI2EFTEESEXERBR AR NENEBE QA
(FWIEKBZ2EEVBRE WWEAH
BRECER-_ZZ__F=A=+—B2&4
FMBMRE URBEZBLEFEZEEGER
R HARahEME2ERER KeEnE
BERMEARESREBRARSE PBREM T
HABEREIEETBRHME-

BMRAR REMBHRRBEZTESGHNAE
(BB EMAG] )Rz EEM B REE
A (TEAMBRELENEERAFHREBR
EXEBER T __F=RA=1+—HZHEAUK
AR ARBEZALFEZEAVBRRRL
ReReRE YDERBFBRAGIZEKE
MEL RS-
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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The Key Audit Matter
ERELZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R F %N EEER

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

FHEERERNH @R

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(j)(ii) and 14 to the audited consolidated financial statements
BRI EES S EIREN 2() - 20)(1) K 14

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the  Our audit procedures in this area included:
Group's goodwill was mainly allocated to a cash-  F IR It 5 2 BZEFBIE:

generating unit (“CGU”) in relation to the provision
of beauty and slimming business in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$16,564,000.
RZEZZF=A=+—RH' E5EBEEBZEK
HEXFZ/)rRE-—HEFEREEREZTRAE
(¥BcReELEN([ReE4+EN]) S8R
16,564,000/ 7T ©

The assessment of the recoverable amount of
goodwill is based on the future business prospect
and forecast performance of the business. Due
to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are
the basis of the assessment of the recoverable
amount of this CGU, impairment review of
goodwill is one of the key judgemental areas that
our audit focused on. There is a risk that the key
assumptions, estimates and judgements on which
the calculations are based upon are inappropriate
and that goodwill is overstated as a result.

BHEZAKREDERBAREBINRREBRR
ERAELFR - AR LB SEESEM 2 IRE 5
AEMKERARBRARRREREAE PR
TAMAR BB ZRERN REMEZAET
ZEFP—EBRRAESE BRERTEMRKEZ
MR At RAB AT TEE  3I BB KA

i

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount rate;
AERERAEEEMERACBERBERIRAEZEEN
TEHRFHEEEERER E5BZBAMRE:

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

A RERAEREMGRR 2 ReRNERA BREAGE
BEBRTMHAZERNE URERBABEREEREE
N EREEACEER:

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including operation growth beyond
the 2023 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates
and discount rates used in the model to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the goodwill;
and
AHEAEBRES I REN - BES_=FFMAE
BIASN IR - REIER X REA TR E - AT
B CEREHESSHEE K

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

AEBERARENAERERBBIAZERJIZIKRERS
FE B ECHEAKROSHEERNFEATEZRK-
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The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R FRE NI EEER

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

ERERRAMNEZHEREFE

Refer to notes 2(j)(i), 2(l), 18 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements
BRI E R e IR ANT20)0) 20) 18%27(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest Our audit procedures in this area included:
receivables recorded initially at fair value BFARMFIAZEZETFBE:

and subsequently at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount (net
of loss allowance) of the loans receivable and
interest receivables were HK$100,505,000 and
HK$916,000 respectively.
EEEVLRATERRBYBER RN E Mg
PR & B 15 AR O 2% 4 8 P AN BE SR W B R R A
B-R-ZE-__FZA=+—H BEKREXKEK
MEBZBREE (HKREREESE) 5 5 /H8100,505,000
7 7T % 916,000 7T, ©

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification of
exposures with a significant deterioration in credit
quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model
such as the probabilities of default, loss given
default, expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.
EHEEER([FEHREEFE]) 2 8AEFLEE
RHE BREEBNEELERABEE AR &
HEEEREXMERZRR WENH Z AL
BHAFBRE AHARBESRERARZHLER
Eo
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obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group’s accounting records;
REREHNERBEIEN (BREBIHERERLTH
mE(mE)) TRE BEEESFTHIATSHE.
MZE - FHAREMER:

testing of controls designed and applied in the process
of approving and granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan extensions;
HBERFEEEFBRE T AR RERZEHETAR
HgBE SRR TR KA & R

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology, the
governance for the ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

AL ERREEz BRES FHEEBEEXZER -
EEENGERPEEERERMAB ZH ARE KRR
/R
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B2 MRS
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRELZEHE EHERRNMEESE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRFANEZEEREFE (F)

Refer to notes 2(j)(i), 2(l), 18 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRI E RS BEREZNT20)0)2() 18%k27(a) (&)

Due to the significance of loans and interest e assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL

receivables (representing approximately 11% of models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
total assets) and inherent uncertainty in such has been a significant increase in credit risk, default or
estimates, we considered this as a key audit credit-impaired, and so allowances for financial assets
matter. should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
EREREREFEBRRN (HEELENI1%) X qualitative assessment;

ZEMFPARE L FETHEREZ  WBMEZSE A EEEEHGCEEAERAR EXETMHEER
BERBARERERE- BREAEEZEN BAXCELEERE BRECREE

BEROREIXKARHMEERREEFEREMTGHE

Az &%

° recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a

sample basis;

EMTE MR ZERABWA

o obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the

borrowers on a sample basis; and

MERBERARERERIEZERER &

° reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any

unsettled past-due balances.

BEHNEREELH YMNEEESHANEER

g B

MAREEANERFLARBEGEZRA
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

R FRE NI EEER

The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Impairment of trade and other receivables

FHRERESREREMERREZRE

Refer to notes 2(j)(i), 2(m), 17 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements
BRI E R e B REZNTZ20)0) 2(m) - 17X27(a)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s trade and other  Our audit procedures in this area included:
receivables (net of loss allowance) amounted FFIR LS EZ EZREFBIE:

to HK$100,359,000 and HK$79,190,000
respectively.

RZEBEZZHF=ZA=+—H BB ZEKE
SHRIEREMEWIE (NEBEEE) DA
100,359,0007% 7T £ 79,190,000/ T °

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables
are based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL to be incurred
respectively, which are estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, debtors’ repayment
history and debtors’ financial position and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve
a significant degree of management judgement.
JEWE 5 I8 R H A BRI 7 BIEEE HiRE
BESMEEELE 2 KATEBREEEHE K128 A
BHEEERZAN (ERAZEREEFELR &
HEWESFE R BEHAEREL REBA
BRARORAME R ET) RE & AT RFERI BB KB
FER 2T A LFBEREZRABRESRERRE
2]l =i
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evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses;

HEEEENEE WEBEBREFEHREEBRERZE
BB ZES 2 R BITREERRIL:

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the ageing report with the relevant sales
invoices;
FRLERERESRIARR RS 2 ERTER BEMHE
BE METERERSCEEREESIBREAERR
& E



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VLGl

The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

FRERESRARAEMERREZRE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R EFRE N EEER

Refer to notes 2())(i), 2(m), 17 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRI E RS BEREZNZ20)0) - 2(m) - 17Kk27(a) (&)

We identified assessing the recoverability of e
trade and other receivables as a key audit matter
because the assessment of recoverability of
trade and other receivables and recognition of
loss allowance are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement,
which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

o 1F9 58RI 5F 1 B W B 5 SRR K A B W kIR 2 A
WeEE S —HEREFZR RERFTELEKES
TRIA Ko H At B MR IR 2 BT U B K RE R B IR R
FEEANEITEM TREBEHELEXRALE A
MIBMREREBEEERERR 2R -

assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the current
financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowance; and
FRECEREMELRSHEMERZEN (B8
ABEHEAEE . ERE HAEEBEEEEERER
BERALAELEENEREAR REERAMBF
EHEZEREBE URFEREIBEEREESES
EREBRRZOR) FHEREMIECERBERZ
aEM: R

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging management regarding their reasons for not
considering a provision against any unsettled past-due
balances.

EHNHBREELHE YRNEREBEARENEZ BREM
REEBHERAREBZRA -
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Other information included in the annual
report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those
charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

- HEERAFEKZSFERERTEE
EHEm LIZMEZBREE HER
BREEEAXBREBZEARNTHHA
A KmakEsy EfEZFER
LRENBREARE - WHRMEERART
EEATHARE - BIZARZ B &R E S
REFAEFEIRAVBRRZBBRK
B-aMEAEBEBEETIR AEFTER &K
MERBERBMBEBREMRELZ
BERBRRBBHAER AWM RREHHM
NS BEEEIBRELE-

— FHEFEEUBHRER(PEEREN) B
BEINFX BERAND UREEHG
WMEEEAURFE2VNNAA2VEERS
REMH-

- B EEERNERIEBETBIMBE
HERXTEHE 2 BERRE MQ%AW
BHREBXRER - ZMEEEE EEY
HITEEEZ BRMRERERAES
Btfe

BAEEBEETAR NEAH (AT EHE)
AEEZBERKRAREARZER B
BPRBZEAER 2 A AMEEERR
B o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VLGl

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Choi Kwong Yu.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2022

Choi Kwong Yu
Practising certificate number P05071
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

,.\.|/\ =N 2
A Em%
For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE_—_FE -4 A 1 IFFE
(Ex )ressed in Hong Kong dollars)

T\y,

Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products

— Provision of beauty and
slimming services

— Provision of franchise services

— Sale of health, beauty and
related products

— Results from investments
in securities

— Interest income from money lending

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

The notes on pages 84 to 212 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

iy 25
—DHEEE R REEER
—REXE R ERG

—REMBAERS
—HERRE XA NMABEM

—BHREXE

—EZFBEA

HERA

ER

Ho Al U

H b W a5 sk & 18
HE MO HA
— R MATHF X

R (BE)
B &R

MEBADER, (FE)
TS A

FRERN(FE)
BEBR:

ARBEBA
FEIE A AR

BREF(EE)
=N

&8

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,476,008 1,715,144
60,695 53,771
153 365
1,379 1,664
14,882 13,430
8,239 9,452
1,561,356 1,793,826
(1,424,185) (1,649,340)
137,171 144,486
5,997 9,397
5,230 801
(46,578) (53,908)
(82,331) (106,279)
19,489 (5,503)
(441) (893)
19,048 (6,396)
(5,156) (10,189)
13,892 (16,585)
8,952 (26,420)
4,940 9,835
13,892 (16,585)
HK cents HK cents
B JEN
11.93 (35.20)
11.57 (35.20)
FAEFI2BE L WHEBKEAV B HRE 2 —

=P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e iR N E A2 WS

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HEZT _—_F=ZA=+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A 7T 251)

2022 2021
—=E_-_C —E_-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
B aF FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FRERA(FE) 13,892 (16,585)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEWKE  (FE) -
for the year, net of nil tax EEE 2 R
ltems that may be reclassified HiEgngeEfoEEEBacEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
- Exchange difference on translation —REGINEB 2T BRE
of financial statements of foreign FMEAZIERZ8
operations 5,158 8,491
- Cumulative exchange gain ——HMBAREHEEEN
reclassified to profit or loss upon NEAERZ REER
deregistration of a subsidiary g 25 4 (1,658) =
ltem that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEEEEMIER -
profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of land and —RBEERALHRETF
buildings held for own use upon NEERAREIREMER
change of use to investment < EHARR
property 11 3,574 S
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEKE
for the year 7,074 8,491
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EREEmWE (BB B8
for the year 20,966 (8,094)
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company PiN/NESTE RSN 14,260 (20,721)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M = 6,706 12,627
20,966 (8,094)

#

The notes on pages 84 to 212 form part of the consolidated B4ZF212B C WMWK FEE M MK 2 —
financial statements. =N

ot
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARe AR R
As at 31 March 2022
R-ZE- ==+ !

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N -5~
AT TC=E )

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property

Goodwill

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amount due from a related party

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Lease liabilities

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ioga FETT FETT
ERBEE
Y% MR REE 11 96,127 109,167
FREEE 12 6,342 11,004
"EE 13 15,500 =
GES 14 17,196 17,196
135,165 137,367
REBEE
FE 15 15,258 10,653
BAFEFAEBZZEMEE
16 97,218 71,819
FEWE 55008 17 100,359 131,327
TN FIE e R E M EWHRIE
17 79,190 104,521
JE W B 51 B 18 101,421 60,374
B —F R E A T RIE 19 3 2
A U B & BR A IR 23(a) 529 573
BENBREEEY 432,054 466,139
826,032 845,408
RBaE
EHEaE 20 3,412 11,601
FEHE 5508 21 1,502 1,436
HitbENRERETER 21 126,974 142,709
HEaE 22 5,439 9,174
B2 HAR IR 23(a) 2,706 3,272
140,033 168,192
REEEFHE 685,999 677,216
EEHABERABERE 821,164 814,583
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR &

As at 31 March 2022
RNEE-—_—_F=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A% 72 251

2022 2021
—E=-= T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FETT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 1,154 2,353
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEEE 23(b) - 3,946
1,154 6,299
NET ASSETS EEFHE 820,010 808,284
Capital and reserves BEXR#E 26
Share capital fig A& 750 750
Reserves i 806,693 799,526
Total equity attributable to owners of FEBRAATHEEAEZLEHE
the Company 807,443 800,276
Non-controlling interests FEVE R fE == 12,567 8,008
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 820,010 808,284

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEFE@WR T - —FNA=Z+RHILENRKET

30 June 2022. o
Chan Ka Kin Mui Wai Sum
R =R 2 WER
Director Director
EZE EZE

The notes on pages 84 to 212 form part of the consolidated HF84EF212H M @R SRATHRE 2 —
financial statements. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
eEm e

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE_ T - —"F=ZA=+t—HILEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TTE5)

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERELAERA
Share- The PRC
based statutory Non-
Share Share Merger  Exchange payment surplus  Revaluation Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Kt hEiEE

RE  ROEE  AHEE  EXGE  GREBE  BRERE  ERBRE  ABEE  2HER &t FEREE  RHAE
HK8 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
AT AL FEL FEL FEL FEz FEz FEz TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2020 R-2-%%

mA-A 120,079 787,794 (3,637) 2,136) 6,625 21,904 - 28,055 (139,911) 818,773 (4619 814154
Changes in equity for 2021 it Jub 3

BR2E:
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EB)/&F - = = = = = = = (26,420) 26,420) 9,835 (16,585)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 A M - - - 5,699 - - - - - 5,699 2,792 8,491

Total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year - - - 5,699 - - - - (26,420) (20,721) 12,627 (8,094)
Capital reorganisation BAES
(note 26a)f) (K261 (119,329) - - - - - - - 11939 - - -
Appropriation to the PRC ERTEERRR
statutory surplus reserve i - - - - - 2,821 - - (2,821) - - -
Cancellation of share options s 4B 1E
(hote 23) (Hi##25) - - - - 6,625) - - S 6,625 S = =
Issue of share options BERE
(note 25) (Hi#25) o o S S 2,224 S > > - 2,224 - 2,224
(119,329) - - 5,609 (4,401 2,821 - - %713 (18497) 12,607 (5,870)
At 31 March 2021 RZBZ-F
=ZB=t-H 750 787,794 (3,637) 3,563 2,224 24,725 - 28,065 (43,198) 800,276 8,008 808,284
At 1 April 2021 R-B=-%
A-B 750 787,794 (3,637) 3,563 2,224 24,725 - 28,055 (43,198) 800,276 8,008 808,284
Changes in equity for 2022 k- a3
BER2E:
Profit for the year FRET = = = = - - - - 8,952 8,952 4,940 13,892
Other comprehensive income  Ef 2 EHE - - - 1,734 - - 3,574 - - 5,308 1,766 7,074
Total comprehensive FREEREEE
income for the year - - - 1,734 - - 3,574 - 8,952 14,260 6,706 20,966
Deregistration of a subsidiary s #H—ENEA - - - - - - - - (7,093) (7,093) 7,03 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling B J#2 %2
interests RE - - - - - - - - - - (9,240) (9,240)
- - - 1,734 - - 3,574 - 1,859 7,167 4,559 11,726
At 31 March 2022 R=B-Zf
ZAz+-8 750 787,794 (3,637) 5,297 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (41,339) 807,443 12,567 820,010

The notes on pages 84 to 212 form part of the consolidated ZE84FEFE2128 2 Mk BKGEMIEHREK 2 —
financial statements. B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il/j_\ Iﬁrﬁ/ﬂb%%

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HEZT _—_F=H | IFFE

——
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 23)

Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Interest income from money lending

— Fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss,
net

— Bank interest income

— COVID-19-related rent
concession received

— Cumulative exchange gain
reclassified from equity to
profit or loss upon deregistration of
a subsidiary

— Dividend income from listed
equity securities

— Fair value loss on an investment
property

— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

— Gain on early termination of leases

— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

— Finance costs

— Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets

— (Reversal of impairment loss)/
impairment loss on trade and
other receivables, net

— Impairment loss on loans and
interest receivables, net

— Impairment loss on goodwill

— Write off of other receivables

— Equity-settled share-based
payment expense

— Net foreign exchange gain

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

RETEH

FR AT A, (B51R)
AT HE:
—REZFBHA
—BRAVFEFARRZ

TRMEEZ N FEKRSF

— IRITH B WA

— B WR2019E MR & 75 48

2R %

——HENBRREHEHER
B BEEREZ R

BEE 3¢k
— FWRAFES 2R EWA
——HEREWEZAR
—HEME BBRRREBZ
(W) BiEFHE

- RERIEEEZ NS
—HEMBLRZ K

— B E R A

—ME BBERIETE

—FREEENE

—ERE ZHIBERE Mt ER
FIE(REBBRE) RE
B85 58

- EREREFBEZRE
E 1R FRE

-EEZREESRE

— P 8 H 4t FE U SR IE

—REEERONRAX

— I 3 M2 B A

EEETHHN 2 EEEF

FEER

Note
ok

5(a)
5(c)
5(c)
5(c)
5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

2022 2021
—E-C - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAET
19,048 (6,396)
(8,239) (9,452)
(12,638) (6,406)
(1,552) (1,450)
= (806)
(1,658) =
(315) (92)
1,793 =
(129) 533
= (616)
- (718)
441 893
11,680 13,5671
10,775 13,747
(855) 12,452
2,153 15,029
- 6,428
857 S
= 2,224
(936) (352)
20,425 38,589
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BT -—F-=-H | IEEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAVETT251)

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase/(decrease) in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in loans and
interest receivables
Increase in amount due from
a related party
Decrease in contract liabilities
Increase in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and
accrued charges

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of
subsidiaries

Net cash (used in)/generated from

investing activities

TR

RAFEHARSZSBAR
(M), D

RUCE B RER M (D)

BN RR RS R E R RIA

W
MR R T8 (2 00) D

J& W — %2 B A = FRIAE AN

BHRERD
J& 1+ B 5 FRIA IR N
Ho A A5 R IR K FE AT B AR

(AR)/REKEXEBZRE

ENFECEME
ENBEEMNEHFE
B HF B
B E

(AR) /REKEESH
BEFH

REED
BEDE HERREBHFK

HEME HERERELZ
P18 3R
HEMBRRZRE RN FRE

(AR) REREESHZ
BEF8
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2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FEIT FET
(4,135) (1,313)

(12,761) 11,550
40,921 (22,339)

21,370 34,142

(42,336) 44,562

(1) =

(8,204) (170)

66 74

(21,237) (57,741)

(5,892) 47,354

(8,867) (9,767)

(186) (408)

8,927 10,014

315 92

(5,703) 47,285

(12,426) (2,664)

373 217

30 - 24,493
(12,053) 22,046




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il/j_\ Iﬁ,ﬁ/)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2022
T ¢ A IIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
LA T 251

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Proceed from a new bank loan

Repayment of a bank loan

Interest paid on a bank loan

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate change

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

Major non-cash transaction:

2022 2021
—_E_— —F——
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
A& EE
BENHEEHS2EAEE S 28 (11,058) (12,769)
ENHEERS 2 EIBD 28 (441) (655)
BT IR RS 2 IR B
33 (9,240) =
IGIRITE R 2 TS RE 28 - 22,918
EERITER 28 - (22,918)
BRIRITERZHE 28 - (238)
ARRMETH2REFE (20,739) (13,662)
ReRBESZEEY (BD)
¥ hnF (38,495) 55,669
REDAZEERESEEY
466,139 402,023
Exgn s
4,410 8,447
RERZBEERBESSEY
432,054 466,139
FEXRERF:

Addition of investment property during the year ended 31 March 7

2022 of HK$17,293,000 was transferred from land and buildings
held for own use under property, plant and equipment as a result
of the Group’s decision in change of its use.

The notes on pages 84 to 212 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

o

S

—TE-_HF=ZA=+—HIFEZEE

) 3 1% 1117,293,0008 T TR AEERE SR
W HERBREBEET ZEEER T RIE
FrRAEAMEREWE BERKRE-

FNAZMEBREEMBERERZ —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BERIN H

B AE TR )

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19
November 2003.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Room 23083,
23/F., China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 March 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
e

BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AR

2

H AR TT A R )

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 36).

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and investment property
are stated at their fair values (see notes 2(f) and 2(h)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

2

FESFTEER @)

@

b)

BHIRA (&)

EEGMASERMRAEER
SETHIE B R AR A IR B R A
ZETEEMHRELEAET A
B FE2(c) 1R B BR V1 K e A % F AR
AEHRHREMNSEARREH ZE
Bt AR A M BRI RBRER
SR HHEEAREEREHCERRR -

ANEBBERA SRR AS T ERE
AR AT AT E B s 2 R (R B
$¥36) ©

REMBBRZEREE

REGAEUBREAKERAZFEE
ERBELRANEE  EIZQFER
Az ([RAFEFAEBRZ]) 22
BMEERKREMENAELRFED
R (RBtsE2(f&2(h)) °

RENABEVBRELEAZKRE
MEBRRFTREEEFLHE &
At RBRER - M FHE - et REBR
SRERRZERAUANREE AfF-
WARRXZ2RE B & FMEF
REBEBERREAEERRE TR
BRTHEBREZZRAEMAE
mEL  HERBRYEBEZLEAM
XKERFASBHUZEERAEREA
BEEHHE 2 ZE - BR&RARE
HZEME TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BERIN H

2

B AE TR )

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective in the current

accounting period of the Group:

“Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2”

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

“COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021”

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
e

BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSARAS HUBTIIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

2

FESFTEER @)

@

B A R R IR R A

MEBABARASEZEF ZER-E
AEEAEHER 2HMEAR
ERESAZELNK YEBEHE
BN MBRNIFEZTERE
AIREEZENZER - RNFEAE
BECHEERENE E€ZEER
B (AXEEREMBALIRE) -

R—REKBARZRE AR E
BRABERAFTARAMBEER
EEENERLEIZEARL-SBER
RAHEZEHR RHRBATHRE N
REBRARFREZXSMEEZE
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(e)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment and are initially stated at fair value while
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. The explanation of how the Group determines the
fair value of financial assets is set out in note 27(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at
FVPL are subsequently recognised in profit or loss
if the investments do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (recycling).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment (including
interest in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see note 2(i))) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to accumulated losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives at the following annual

rates:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired
term of lease

Machinery 10.0% - 33.3%

Furniture and fixtures 10.0% - 33.3%

Office and computer 10.0% - 33.3%

equipment
Leasehold 20.0% or over the
improvements remaining terms of leases

(whichever is shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0% - 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2(u)(vii).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

2

FESFTEER @)

®

HEEE (#)

EARBENRE BB L LR &
fem k& - AR & B R &R B EE R
THRAEMzEERELEE L
SEEFAGEARERT KA ERE
ETEEE CRAKILERFEM
ELXE2Y MesHTEHERG-
EHERBEUNRSTAEHFER
SHEREEEZREEFELAR
HAE ANEEREEEZREE

EREZT AR ABm-

EHEHEXEERE (ALIFRL
REEANTHREB) HRED
(IEEEk] AIFEARIIE—IR
BEBEHEHE )R HEAGBTSEMT
E-RUBERT HERENRARIE
HAERE ARELETHENR R
MERERREIRRERERAE-
e — Il ShE R 201958 s F m &
BEERSIBANTAETEYHMESE
A F165% [ 5 ] 5546BE AT 15 1+
ZHERR - REFBFAT AEE
MNAEREESZTFEESESR
EEBRHEEER INEREE
ZEHEBENEHFABERELY
FRBEARKEZBERSER
BHREK-

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4=

N

=1

I AE AR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CEEETUE

2

YA 7251 R )

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(i)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)
(ii)) except for the right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with note 2(h). Depreciation is
calculated to write off the cost of right-of-use assets
using the straight line method over the lease term or
where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note

2(g).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
trade and other receivables, loans and interest
receivables, amount due from a related party and
cash and cash equivalents).

Financial assets measured at FVPL are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive),
discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk. In
measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESTHEREXR@®
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) ) FEFEREEREE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial assets () ZBEEZEFEERE(E)
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial asset since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month
ECLs are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset assessed
at the end of the reporting period with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial asset’s external
or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis
or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(u) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount

less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESTEXR@®
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) ) GEFEREEREE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial assets () Z2HBEEZEFEERE(E)

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE AR EE

AN
e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATRN

2

9 LA B

B TR )

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measureable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

)]

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method

and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(k)

U]

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets, or if not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans
granted to borrowers in the ordinary course of
business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see note 2(j)(i)).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price and are subsequently stated at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

2())().

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(u)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2(m)).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs and subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see note 2(w)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories sold at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

()

s

Sh - BB TTEIR)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme
under which the Group receives services or
goods from its directors, employees and other
eligible participants as consideration for share
options of the Company. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)
() Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly
to accumulated losses). Where a share option is
cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the share options is recognised
immediately.

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

When investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the end of
the reporting period unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

S different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

®)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATRN
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B TR )

2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(u)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it

arises from the sale of goods and provision of services

in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product

or a service is transferred to the customer at the

amount of promised consideration to which the Group

is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts

collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes

value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty
and related products are recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the
products.

Provision of beauty and slimming services

Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised when the services have
been rendered to customers.

Prepaid beauty services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Customers who may not
exercise all the contractual rights of the prepaid
packages upon expiry of service period, and such
unutilised portion are fully recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
=

PR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BRI £

B AE TR )

2

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Franchise income

Initial franchise income is recognised upon the
grant of rights, completion of the designated
phases of the franchise set-up and transfer of
know-how to the franchisee in accordance with
the terms stated in the franchise agreement.
Recurring franchise income is recognised on a
pre-determined amount in accordance with the
terms as stated in the franchise agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 2(j)(i)).

Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments

is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
e

BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2
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Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(u)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as other revenue in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(vii) Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

2

FESFTEER @)

G

)

Wi R H ALK ()

(vi) B P B

B #BRE BREFRINZS
0 B M AN 58 [ 15 38 <7 7% 5 7 BY)
Z IR B - R F AR B
MBARNKRFER - HERE
BAEERAX CRZEMBNE
ERXAHRAGEERBRD
THERSEMKS - MELE
BMEEXN2ZEMBA B Z
BEZEEETNE BER
R EE 2 A E R FHmENR
FEAXZTARBRETER
HER

(vii) 2K A

REHEBE N ZRKHESIA
REHBEZENHRANERE D
HEAERSERE KIHEEE
MEEFERISGREAEEE
MERPESZMRERNA K
HHHERBNBRERRE
WEHERRRE L — 8D -

HNEBRE

FAZIBRZRRZ A ZHITE
FHE-DINBEHEZEBEER
BEEERPRZIRITERTLRE -
PE 3 Wk MBS BN B s R RERR o

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BERIN H

2

B AE TR )

Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on the
acquisition of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of
a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSBTS B TTIIR

2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Komg do\lars unless otherwise indicated)

% 2 H BN B TR

2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viiij The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'.L|
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B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEZBEFHIN HAB IR

2 Significant accounting policies (Continuead)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale

of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty

and slimming services, provision of franchise services,

sale of health, beauty and related products, investments in

securities and provision of money lending business.

FESTHEE#)

\)

2 BB E

RAVMBRRMEBILED R
ENBEBZREREMAAEHE
RERTREBABRHRZMBEE
HAERAGE BEEEMBERAR
5 B 1 [ 56755 bt a8 o0 B B R Ko Y
fERR -

MM BEREmME ENERLED
HreatRE HEoNHAFE
P BT B AR AIEE M R R 1T
g EFPEBEANERN HHEMKIE
HIRBEAAAEUREERREHE
77 T ER LR BR A1 o e 37 3F & R & K
Z%@%“E‘ BT & K& Z F2ER
BB RIRES ORI

AEBZEEXEB RO HHEE KL E

EBER REEDREE

2 AR 75 - fR 4 hn B2

BERSG HERR XBFLHEBEE®R
EHRRENRREHRBER -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B B RS- )

YA 7251 R )

3 Revenue (Continued)

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax
or other sales taxes; service income from provision of
beauty and slimming services, net of discounts; franchise
income and interest income earned from the money lending

WaEREFPMMEREMB AT R
BBENKEMEEN cERE KB
R A MR AR AR = 3T 0 2 BR 7% Uk
N INBEEBERA A KR E %5 BRI
ZHRBWA-FR RPHERZEETE

business. The amount of each significant category of

revenue recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

Revenue within the scope of
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”
Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products
Provision of beauty and
slimming services
Provision of franchise services
Sale of health, beauty and
related products

Revenue from other sources
Interest income from money lending
Fair value gain on financial assets
at FVPL, net
Realised gain on financial assets
at FVPL, net

WS T

2022 2021
—ZE2-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
BERMEREERFE15 5K
[EFE#Hkhz | SERZ
W =
DHEHE AR EEE M
1,476,008 1,715,144
REEARBERY
60,695 53,771
REMBEIERD 153 365
HERR EARBHEER
1,379 1,664
1,538,235 1,770,944
H i 3R Uk 2=
WEZF B WA 8,239 9,452
BEAFEFABEZ
EMEEZ ATFERZEFHE 12,638 6,406
REAFEHABREZ
TRMEEE#FRIKNERFE 2,244 7,024
23,121 22,882
1,561,356 1,793,826
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AL + 2
e IR MIEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEBIN HUBTIIR)

3 Revenue (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under those revenue
contracts that had an original expected duration of one year
or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 10(a) and 10(b) respectively.

W2k ()

AEBEEHEWGDENERTEMBR
HEEAEISRFI2IRZYEATEES
Ao MERER LT BEAERANEERNE
RERZEFRSEAH (REEHRFHLS—
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ZWEEE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R M
(Expressed in Hong Komg dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br BAE B B TIIR)
4 Other revenue and other gains or losses 4 HiERkEMKRSEER
2022 2021
—_=2-_ —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Other revenue Hfh g &
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,552 1,450
COVID-19-related rent concession 220198 K mSHmAEBES
received R - 806
Government grants (Note) EAZJT%@ Bh (Htat) 3,954 6,633
Dividend income from listed equity fEAE S 2R EWA
securities 315 92
Rental income e WA 175 -
Others HAh 1 416
5,997 9,397
Other gains or losses HttlZ R EE
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified BOEE M — B AR &
from equity to profit or loss upon KEREFTHEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary ZFHIE 5 W Es 1,658 =
Fair value loss on investment property wEME 2 A TFEBE (1,793) =
Gain on early termination of leases REKIEAE 2 W= - 616
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HMEMZE HEREHEZ
plant and equipment, net Wz, (B18)F5E 129 (533)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 2 - 718
Net foreign exchange loss fE X EEFE (26) -
Reversal of impairment loss on B E 5 IE R E R B
trade receivables 5,261 -
Others Hits 1 =
5,230 801
Note: Wit

Included in the government grants received for both years were funds
and subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s
development and business activities.

In 2021, the Group successfully applied for funding support of
HK$4,790,000 from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, set up by the Government from Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. The purpose of the funding was to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who would
otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group
was required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to the approved list of the
employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TS R Yt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BSBEFRAINN HUABTIIR)

5 Profit/(loss) before taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging/

(crediting):

(a) Finance costs:
Interest on a bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities

(b) Staff costs (including directors’

remuneration (note 7)):

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Equity-settled share-based
payment expense

(a) AAE KA :
RITEFZHE
HEBEZHE

b)) ETRA (BEES
M (RaE7)) -
o R R AR

REHRFENRTE 2 H5

BEEE RN NRAX
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BRBLADER, (B5ER)

BB, (BR)EMR(GEA)T

5| &8 :

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
- 238
441 655
441 893
49,057 52,721

=
8,603 4,645
- 1,916
57,660 59,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHFREN HUABTIHIR)

5 Profit/(loss) before taxation (continued) 5 BREANER (E8) (@
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging/ BREAER, (BR)EMR(GFA)T
(crediting): (Continued) HI&IE: (/&)

2022 2021
—=2-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(c) Other items: (c) EM1E AR :
Cost of inventories sold and EEFERERERE
services provided* A 1,424,185 1,649,340
Auditors’ remuneration % SEM BN & 1,300 1,300
Depreciation of: e
- property, plant and equipment — W MR RRE 11,680 13,571
— right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 10,775 13,747
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ (REBERE) REEE:
impairment losses on:
— trade receivables —EWE Z B (5,261) 7,065
— other receivables — H fib fE W FN IR 4,406 5,387
- loans and interest receivables, net —FEREREF B FRE 2,153 15,029
— goodwill — g - 6,428
Write-off of other receivables it 8 EL b, & U 5K IR 857 =
Equity-settled share-based payment YR TEROEREE
expense for a consultant B A X - 308
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHREBHE AY 1,481 1,707
* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes * EEFERDIRERB 2N ABREEER
HK$222,000 (2021: HK$586,000) relating to depreciation, which & 2222,000% 7T (= F = —4F : 586,000
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed BIL)  ZEBINET A LB R 2B
separately above. WaEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSA A 10008

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

B IR )

of profit or loss

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or @

loss:

Current tax — Hong Kong
Profits Tax

Provision for the year (note 23(a))

Under provision in respect of
prior years

Current tax - PRC Enterprise
Income Tax

Provision for the year (note 23(a))

Deferred tax (note 23(b))

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Income tax expense

(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax

ENRE-SEFEH
FREE (HiF23())
BEFEREBETR
EMBE-PECEMER
FRBE (HiF23())
EREBLIR (H7223(b))

ERZHEMNELRER

TS XX

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year ended 31 March 2022 is calculated at 8.25%
of the first HK$2,000,000 estimated assessable
profit and 16.5% of the remaining estimated
assessable profit for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was
made for the year ended 31 March 2021 as the
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong had either no assessable profits for
the year or had sufficient tax losses brought
forward to set off against current year’s estimated
assessable profits for the year.

REEBERAZMER

meBRERAZEE:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
461 -
28 34
8,709 10,155
(4,042) -
5,156 10,189

(i) EBEFZ

REBE-_ZT-_—_F=ZA=+—
HIEFE BEMNGSHEBETD
B E RN E2,000,000/8 7T 2 4
R BUG F 28.25% K T
HETERBEF 216.5%5"
o

HE—ZE-—F=F=+—H
LFEE TEREENESR
REE DHREARARER
& B S /O B BB R R
R E R Bl m RS B B 49
MEEBEEEEAFENG
FHRE R B m F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= ACH
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VAR RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong doHars unless otherwise indicated)

6

B AR -

3 LA

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continuead)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect
of the undistributed profits derived prior to 31
December 2007 are exempt from the withholding
income tax.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021,
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax

no deferred tax

that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the directors of the Company is in a
position to control the dividend policies of the
PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at

the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
relevant countries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i m SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSBTS B TTIIR

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss (Continuead)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before
taxation, calculated at Hong Kong
Profits Tax rates of 16.5%

(2021: 16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions

Under provision in respect of
prior years

Tax concession

Others

Income tax expense

REEBERANZAER 4

FrERi B X BB AR R E 2 &5t
B (F5R) 2R
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
BREIATE R (EE) 19,048 (6,396)
BREADRF, (BB 2
BEBIE REBNEH
HE16.5% (ZTE=—F:
16.5% )& & 3,143 (1,055)
AR 2 MG T2
4,493 6,075
BEARBIMAZ B G E (5,115) (5,084)
REREREZB I HEEE
1,193 953
RERKRBARERBIE
MBEE 4,173 6,610
HARTAERMEESREZ
MBEE (1,269) (1,251)
REMAEERAMEAR
TRERE MG TE (2,287) 3,907
BEFERETR
28 34
MIEER (165) =
HAtb 962 =
FBHAX 5,156 10,189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'.L|
iy

B FERREE

(Expressed in Hong Komg dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHEHBN 11

7

TTHIR)

Directors’ and chief executive’s 7 EBERFETHABZFHMH
remunerations
(a) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section (a) WEEBRAGAFEIMN)E A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part A (BBEBEZEEFTER) R G FE2
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about R GEM L1 #8 B # 8 2 2 == % B 40
Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing N
Rules are as follows:
Equity-settled
Salaries, allowances and Discretionary Retirement scheme share-based
Directors’ fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions payment expense Total
j £k Ho RERENAER BERL BiREER RELERBARER LS
202 201 202 201 22 201 2022 201 202 2021 202 201
“®¥--f -F--% Z¥--f -F--f ZB--f -F--% ZBC-E -E--F B -E--F B “E--F
HKSOO0  HKSUDO  HKSU0D  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSUDO  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSOO0  HKSUOO  HKSUO  HKSUOD
&7 Fir iz iz iz:23 iz F&r \Z:2 T&r Az &7 iz
Executive directors 41788
M. Mui Wai Sum BRRLE - - 360 360 - - 18 18 - 330 378 708
Mr. Chan Ka Kin RFi4E - = 30 360 = 5 18 18 - 330 378 708
Non-executive director ~~ ¥#TEZ
Mr. Takashi Togo L1 Eaditd 20 240 - - - - - - - 308 240 548
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred ~ ZIfz %4 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Au Siu Lun Ekks
(appointed on 29 May 2020) (W=Z=F&%f
~+hBEEE) 120 100 = = 5 - 5 - = - 120 100
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ~ #£ 8%+ 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William  Roberts, Daniel William
(resigned on 29 May 2020) %4 (R-F-%%
BAZthBEH) - 20 - - - - - - - - - 20
600 60 720 720 s . % % = 968 1,356 252
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no RBEE-_ZE-_—FR-_FT-—F=
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. A=+—RALtFERN HMEESFH
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the RHABRREMNMES AEEIT
directors and chief operating decision maker as an BRAEERIELERRAINE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MME EEMAREMAREE
compensation for loss of office. A 2 #2 B ok B B 4 (2
(b) The remuneration of the chief executive officer, Ms. b) FTETBABBERZLTZEHFHR

Kwai Fei Ying, is disclosed in note 31(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHI HUBTHIR)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 BmE¥FAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of TEsaHmATH BECHALTAEHE
the five highest emoluments are directors (2021: two) whose HERMFT@QRENES (22 —F
emolument is disclosed in note 7(a). The aggregate of the MB) ZABAT(ZEZ—F:=%)
emoluments in respect of these five individuals (2021: three) ZHewmEeT:

are as follows:

2022 2021
—ZE2-— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other emoluments Fe REMMNE 7,621 5,356
Discretionary bonuses BB IELL - =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 206 54
Equity-settled share-based BREERNNHRAZ
payment expense - 948
7,827 6,358
The emoluments of the five (2021: three) individuals with the AE(ZEZ—F: ZRA) & ATZ
highest emoluments are within the following bands: Bl BRT 5 #E
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ AZ
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z 78T %1,000,000 # 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #&7L%1,500,000 & 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £2,000,000 & 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /& 7L 22,500,000 /& 7T = =
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /& 7L £3,000,000 /& 7T - S
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T £3,500,000 /& 7T = =
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/% 7T £4,000,000/% 7T 1 1
5, 6!
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no REBEEZZE__FR-_F=-_—F=A
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the individuals —t+—BLEFER AEEHMEINHE
with highest emoluments of the Group as an inducement to FAREBESHFMHNAL EEEMNARKE
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss ARG B 2 ZEh B (E o
of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br B AT BB TIIR)

9 Earnings/(loss) per share 9
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$8,952,000 (2021: loss attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$26,420,000) and the
weighted average of 75,049,000 ordinary shares (2021:
75,049,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the REVEEHITEBR
beginning of the year

Effect of capital reorganisation AEHEZZE
(note 26(a)(ii) (Btat26(a)00))

Weighted average number of TR i E

ordinary shares

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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ZRER, (ER)
@ SREARF (FR)

BREXRRH(BR)RFAEE
KRR BB AE F18,952,0007% 7T
ZE—F BEBREARREAA
E51826,420,0008 70) R B B 1T &
8 A% 04 35 #(75,049,000 (=&
~—#:75,049,000) BBEE WM :

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
‘000 ‘000

F iR FAE
75,049 750,494
- (675,445)

75,049 75,049




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'.L|
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B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSBTS B TTIIR

9 Earnings/(loss) per share (Continued) 9

(b)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

®)

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for
the year is based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$8,952,000

(2021:

loss attributable to owners of the Company of

HK$26,420,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 77,363,000 ordinary shares (2021:
75,049,000 ordinary shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 March

Effect of share options exercised
(note 25)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) at 31 March

R=ZA=FT—HzZ@ER
hniE 39 &
EITEERE ZE
(Hit25)

R=ZA=t—BZE&EBRK
(B58) -T2

The assumed exercise of the outstanding share options
for the year ended 31 March 2021 had anti-dilutive
effect and had therefore been excluded from the above

calculation.

BRERN (BR) ®)

SR#BERF(BE)

FRERBERT(BB)IREB
RAR BB A 498,952,000
T(ZZEZ—F - BEBRARQAER
A E51826,420,0005%8 T ) & & &A%
DN#E F 15 #77,363,000 (— & = —
& :75,049,000) Rt E T

2022 2021
—E=-= —E- %
‘000 ‘000

FiR FR
75,049 75,049
2,314 -
77,363 75,049

BERBE_T-—F=A=+—
BIEFETRARTEZERERS
&%%)&fg IIHZI;KH%)\L D-‘—

At
H o
Ean
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HFEBEN HIAETIIR)

10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

()  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i) Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products
(v) Investments in securities
(vi)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment
results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other gains or losses, finance costs and
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property, current
tax recoverable and other assets that are managed on a
central basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that are
managed on a central basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SA s

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 2P/ E
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities @ oBEF EEREE
2022
—E-CF
Distribution Sale of
sale of health,
cosmetic  Provision of beauty
and  beauty and and
skin care slimming Franchise related Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
PHEE HERR
Rk REEXER mne E3
EEER ARRE BIEER HEER EERE & &
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FEx FET Tz
Disaggregated by timing of REINEREED
revenue recognition
Point in time RE-KREE 1,476,008 - - 1,379 2,244 - 1,479,631
Over time BERHE - 60,695 153 - 12,638 8,239 81,725
Reportable segment revenue DE: V¢ 1,476,008 60,695 153 1,379 14,882 8,239 1,561,356
Reportable segment results DES GEIE+ 26,296 6,777 (783) 500 10,512 2,493 45,795
Unallocated corporate expenses FABRBARE (26,306)
Profit from operations LERF 19,489
Finance costs BEKA (441)
Profit before taxation B i A0 & R 19,048
Income tax expense FEHREY (5,156)
Profit for the year EREF 13,892
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ (REBBEE)/
impairment losses on: HEER:
— trade receivables -ERBSHE (4,799) (462) - - - - (5,261)
- other receivables - HhEKHE - 4,406 - - - - 4,406
- loans and interest receivables, net  —ERERRF S FE - - - - - 2,153 2,153
Depreciation of: wE:
- property, plant and equipment -nE BEREE 2,344 5,135 1 - 855 36 8,371
- right-of-use assets -FRERE 1,935 5,947 - - 2,893 - 10,775
Interest on lease liabilities REBEZTE 140 246 - - 55 - 441
Interest income MEBRA (1,532) (10) - - ) (1) (1,552)

BB T R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBFAIN HABTIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Disaggregated by timing of

revenue recognition
Point in time
Over time

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Impairment losses on:
- trade receivables
- other receivables

- loans and interest receivables, net

- goodwill
Depreciation of:

- property, plant and equipment

- right-of-use assets
Interest on a bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest income

REARHBEY

WE-ER%
BEHE

ARERTREY

iy a3
BENK

BHAEE
FERAX

EREER

BEBE:
-EREHHA
- EBEYE
-ERERRM TR
-BE
&:
% KERRE
-EREAE
BTERZHE
BEEEZFE
MEMA

10 ZHEBE|E

V=
(%)

@ XK BEREEE)

2021
—E--&
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
and  beauty and beauty and
skin care slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products  in securities lending Total
NEHE HERRE.
Rk REEER me e
EEEm ERRB RIEEH HEER E5RE e A
HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET T FET
1,715,144 - - 1,664 7,024 - 1,723,832
- 53,771 365 - 6,406 9,452 69,994
1,715,144 53,771 365 1,664 13,430 9,452 1,793,826
33,678 (25,413) (3,490) 511 6,283 (6,608) 4,961
(10,464)
(5,503)
(893)
(6,396)
(10,189)
(16,585)
6,596 469 - - - - 7,065
- 5,224 - 109 - - 5,333
- - - - - 15,029 15,029
- 6,428 - - - - 6,428
1,799 5,719 1 - 2,180 216 9,915
1,828 9,389 - - 2,530 - 13,747
238 - - - - - 238
195 404 - - 56 - 655
(1,388) (8) - - (63) (1) (1,450)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBEFHIN HUBTIIR)
10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 D EP/E (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) @ IBEE BEREEE)
2022
—E-CF
Distribution Sale of
sale of health,
cosmetic  Provision of beauty
and  beauty and and
skin care slimming Franchise related Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AHHEE HERE
ik R#EAR mE EX954
EREM BRRH RIEER HEER BERE W& =2
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FEz FET
Segment assets PHEE
— Property, plant and equipment — 0% BEREE 4,865 9,654 - - 35 - 14,554
- Right-of-use assets —FRREEE 1,967 4,375 - - - - 6,342
- Other assets —HiEE 244,274 140,487 2,043 168 297,440 163,160 847,572
Unallocated corporate assets APBAREE 92,729
Total assets BEES 961,197

Segment liabilities PHEE (108,817) (13,856) (13,808) (1) (34) (4 (136,520)
Unallocated corporate liabilities FOEAREE (4,667)
Total liabilities BERE (141,187)
Additions to segment

non-current assets ABERDEERE 3,245 4,713 - - - - 7,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZEEHAEN HUETIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets
- Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
- Other assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to segment
non-current assets

NHEE
— W% BERRE
—ERELE
—EtEE
APERTEE

NHAR

APERAAR

aEAE

ARERDEAERE

10 EH/E (&)

@ DHEE BEEREE(E)
2021
—E--&
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
and  beauty and beauty and
skin care slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products  in securities lending Total
NEHE HERRE.
Rk REEER me ES
EEEm ERRB RIEEH HEER E5RE e A
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET T FET
3,894 10,108 - - 891 144 15,037
3,778 4,333 - - 2,893 - 11,004
244,956 120,522 1,907 3,374 353,243 135,655 859,657
97,077
982,775
(123,072) (25,926) (12,546) (112 (3,311) 8 (164,975)
(9,516)
(174,491)
706 1,700 7 - - = 2,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i m SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSARAS HUBTIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

10 DEHwE (&)

(b) Geographical information ) HEHER
The Group’s revenue from external customers REBEINBEPL 2B R BBIER
and information regarding non-current assets by FEEZEMIZAEME ST
geographical locations are as follows:
2022
—s==-=
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H BB &#
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
Revenue from INER R P 2 I E
external customers 1,476,162 85,194 1,561,356
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,832 128,333 135,165
2021
T —fF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H BB & #
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT FHET
Revenue from SNEBR P 2 e
external customers 1,720,973 72,853 1,793,826
Non-current assets FEMBEE 7,699 129,668 137,367
(¢) Major customers © FEEF

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no (2021: Nil)
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue.

REBE-_ZT-_—_F#=ZA=+—HI
FE BME(ZS=—F 8)8FP
ZRPIEREBRZEIONIA Lo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHFREN HUABTIHIR)
11 Property, plant and equipment 11 YE -HERRE
Furniture Office and
Land and and computer Leasehold Motor
buildings Machinery fixtures equipment improvements vehicles Total
1ih HHR BAER g
REF L E AEXE B NELE nE 2
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FET TET FET FET FET

Cost RA&
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-TFEMA-A 110,063 17,778 4,345 6,883 30,775 15,889 185,723
Exchange adjustments R - 152 4 99 632 612 1,587
Additions AE - 1,675 5 76 252 656 2,664
Disposals e - (3,416) (789) (371) (6,713) (1,021) (12,310)
At 31 March 2021 W-E--%=F=1+-H 110,053 16,189 3,603 6,687 24,946 16,136 177,614
At 1 April 2021 RZF--F¥MA—-A 110,053 16,189 3,608 6,687 24,946 16,136 177,614
Exchange adjustments EREE - - 3 43 167 353 566
Surplus on revaluation EfiBH% 3,574 - - - - - 3,574
Transfer to investment property BRERENE (19,386) - - - - - (19,386)
Additions RE 4,436 3,993 22 97 683 3,195 12,426
Disposals LE - - - (393) (12) (1,483) (1,888)
At 31 March 2022 W-Z--%=A=+-H 98,677 20,182 3,628 6,434 25,784 18,201 172,906
Accumulated depreciation RHNE
At 1 April 2020 RZF-T4MA—-AH 12,764 10,249 3,587 5,907 21,922 10,866 65,295
Exchange adjustments R - 129 30 85 536 361 1,141
Charge for the year FRFE 3,390 2,482 403 521 4,223 2,552 13,571
Written back on disposals LEBER - (2,920) (682) (326) (6,713) (919) (11,560)
At 31 March 2021 W-E--%=zF=1+-H 16,154 9,940 3,338 6,187 19,968 12,860 68,447
At 1 April 2021 R-F--4MA—-A 16,154 9,940 3,338 6,187 19,968 12,860 068,447
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - 2 35 144 208 389
Transfer to investment property BRERENE (2,093) - - - - - (2,093)
Charge for the year FRIE 3,252 2,740 154 212 3,439 1,883 11,680
Written back on disposals HEBER - - - (342) (1) (1,291) (1,644)
At 31 March 2022 R-F--4=F=1+-H 17,313 12,680 3,494 6,092 28,540 13,660 76,779
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2022 W-E--4=F=1+-H 81,364 7,502 134 342 2,244 4,541 96,127
At 31 March 2021 W-Z--%=fA=+-H 93,899 6,249 265 500 4,978 3,276 109,167
The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong under THEEFUREABLREFBHEORE
medium-term leases. B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSAE AN BB TIIR)

12 EHEESE

12 Right-of-use assets

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost RN :
At 1 April 2020 RZZTZEFWMA—A 49,255
Exchange adjustments M 5 38 B 1,846
Additions NE 8,401
Disposals & (9,782)
Adjustment as a result of early REKIEHEMBL AR
termination of leases (26,005)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—HBkK
—E-_—FWMA—H 23,715
Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 B 312
Additions NE 5,989
Disposals & (12,098)
At 31 March 2022 RZEBE_Z_F=A=+—H 17,918
Accumulated depreciation AEIE
At 1 April 2020 RZE-_ZFTFMWA—H 21,215
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 8 B 713
Charge for the year FRITE 13,747
Written back on disposals AR | (9,782)
Adjustment as a result of early RERIEHEEMB AR
termination of leases (13,182)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-ZEBE-_—FZA=Z+—HEK
—E-—FMYA—H 12,711
Exchange adjustments PE A& 188
Charge for the year FAFE 10,775
Written back on disposals & R E (12,098)
At 31 March 2022 RZE_—_F=A=+—H 11,576
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z—F=A=+—H 6,342
At 31 March 2021 RZZE-_—f=A=+—H 11,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NI

e R Rk AL

(Expressed in Hong Komg do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
BB BRI HLAE TR

12

13

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain leased
properties as its factory complex and office premises
through tenancy agreements. The leases run for a period
of 2 to 4 years, at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows comprise of cash outflows for leases of
HK$1,481,000 and HK$11,499,000 (2021: HK$1,707,000
and HK$13,424,000) in operating and financing activities
respectively.

Investment property

12 EHEEE &)

AEHEEBZERERARSEDS
FREDERE TEE x@&% £
Mg R TE B M2EAE  FTA R
EREREFNGRE R EHEEL T RET
BREMR-

REEBRESRERZIN ZRNEREL
2hBmEEH 2HAER SR B D 7
1,481,000/ 7T &% 11,499,000 7t (=&

— 4% :1,707,000/% JT 213,424,000/
JT) °

13 REW=

HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and RZE-_TFWA—B T -_—F

1 April 2021 —A=+—RAkZZETE=-—FHA—H =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment R HESRERE (WETT)

(note 11) 17,293
Fair value loss NEEEE (1,793)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEZ—_F=A=+—8H 15,500
The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and are WEYHEMRES UREBETFHHEHER
held under a medium-term lease. B
The fair value of the Group’s investment property is AEBBEVMEAFERERARE
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring BEEREESGSE UHEEEBUBRE

basis, categorised into Level 2 fair value measurement within
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSATHIN BB THR)

13 REW=E#)

13 Investment property (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available. The fair value
of the Group’s investment property at 31 March 2022 has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation by CHFT Advisory
And Appraisal Ltd., an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, and its fair value is
determined using the market approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis using market data which is publicly
available.

The Group leases out a property under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Minimum undiscounted lease payments under operating
leases in place at 31 March 2022 will be receivable by the
Group in future periods as follows:

FE_MAFEFTEHBAZE (F—HA
ZHRERIN KRE=ZHFAZERTAER
BASBEBMEL TABREASIRAL
BHMSEBEL2E B ARE -KEEIR
EYWER-_ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HZA
FTEERBHEAAEETEBEZBILAS
BRBEMEMENZRNTEBERDF
FifEz EE MEQAFEDIKESER
AR BMSEHBERE AT FEHRER
ABEEZHEMEDREEERERA
M EERE

AEERBLEMELHE -BEYE VKA
HOBER—EMF FIOAERNER
ZHARABREBENBLY  EREBERHE
EGR - FEEENERSATEHEEN

Eoe
A °

BE_T-__F=ZA=1T—HITUNK
EHERTZHERTEHRENFKAEA
P AN SR B A R R EA R BN T

HK$ 000

FHET

Within 1 year 1FE R 420
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBB2F A 245
665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(% BAEEM - LB TFIR)

14 Goodwill 14 B8
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s EEIZM E2e)fTE 2 AE B @R A
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). For the purposes RepmBEIRAMET BHECREERKEH
of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the ROREAEB 2 EBEREELESEN
Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according (ReEELESN) JFEBIHAOT

to country of operations and business segment as follows:

2022 2021
—=2-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of beauty and slimming services 2 E R & 4 88 R % —
- Hong Kong (“Unit A”) &% (T846A]) 16,564 16,564
Provision of beauty and slimming services 12 fit 35 25 & 4 8% iR 1% —
— the PRC (“Unit B”) B ([ERB ) - -
Money lending business — REXE—-FE ([EMC))
Hong Kong (“Unit C”) 595 595
Multiple units without significant goodwill #&E A2 > Z @& ([EAb])
(“Others”) 37 37
17,196 17,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iva Ry =

e TS R Yt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B EAFERIN BB THIR)

14

Goodwill (Continued)

Cost:
At 1 April 2020
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Exchange adjustments
At 31 March 2022

Accumulated impairment:
At 1 April 2020

Exchange adjustments
Impairment loss

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

Exchange adjustments
At 31 March 2022

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

B
R-E-F
[ 5, 38 2

F_?_

£=A=t+—-H

RZZ-_—-F¥N0A—-H

34 8

i

—FZA=+—H

RiHAE:

R-ZE-%
ERAR
RIEER

%:%:

~—%=A=t-A

R-ZE-_—-FNA—-H

AR
e

_7_

BRMEE:
NZE=

AN —
N
}\_

—F=ZA=+—H

—FZA=+—H

——%=A=t—H

14 B2 %)

Unit A Unit B Unit C Others Total
B{A BB BfC Hith @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET FET
16,564 8,168 595 332 25,659
- 666 - - 666
16,564 8,834 595 332 26,325
- 49 - - 49
16,564 8,883 595 332 26,374
- 1,844 - 295 2,139

- 562 - - 562

- 6,428 - S 6,428

- 8,834 - 295 9,129

- 49 - - 49

- 8,883 - 295 9,178
16,564 - 595 37 17,196
16,564 - 595 37 17,196

EFCREBEBS S EREIH [EER

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CEEETUE

14

YA 7251 R )

Goodwill (Continued)
Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2021: 3.0%). This
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 16.5% (2021:
15.8%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for
the value-in-use calculation relates to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the Unit A’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development including the fluctuation in beauty
and slimming service business in the current economic
environment in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of Unit A to exceed its recoverable amount.

Unit B

The CGU of Unit B has been fully impaired since the year
ended 31 March 2021 in view of the deterioration in revenue
level and poor operating results of the CGU in the prior
years and economic environment in the PRC.
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16 Financial assets at fair value through

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSERHIN BB THIR)

Inventories 15 78
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a)
position comprise:

2022
—E-=

HK$’000

FET

Merchandise UK G 15,258

RAEMBRRARAZFERRE:

2021

B —4F
HK$ 000
FETT

10,653

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b)
as an expense and included in profit or loss: O

2022

—E__F

HK$’000

FET

Merchandise UK G 1,398,973

ERARAXAFARBEZFESR

2021
—E-—F
HK$’'000
FAET

1,632,734

profit or loss

16 RAVEFABSZZEHMEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REBZ ETRAFZS (Hita)

(note a) 87,299 63,633
Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong A& 2 3F b Al # R (& %

(note b) (Kratb) 4,924 -
Unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong &F#& BN ZIF FTRAES - 8,186
Unlisted equity fund in Hong Kong REBZIELTRAES 4,995 =

97,218 71,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

% B A N - 1 LAH

TTHR)

16 Financial assets at fair value through 16 BAFEFTAERZEHMEE
profit or loss (Continued) (%)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong @ RNEBZLTREAES
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had financial RZEZZF=A=+—H &%
assets at FVPL representing equity securities listed EEATFEFANEZZSMEE
in HK$87,299,000 (2021: HK$63,633,000). The fair ¥ EM RN FE %87,299,000% 7T (=
values of listed equity securities are determined based T~ — % :63,633,000/7C) o L
on the quoted market closing price available on the RAFS 2 ANFEDIZEZFAER
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the MGEMR EMBKRAF M EE
end of the reporting period. JE °
Details of significant investments are as follows: BEAREFBOT
2022
—B-CE
Percentage of Fair value
total issued atthe Percentage
share capital end of the tothe  Fairvalue Dividend
Number of  owned by reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) Gainon received for
Stock code Name of investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group Cost period total assets forthe year  disposal the year
AE@R EREE FALTE
K5 #BRARA REGHE  HEEE i/ FRERM
R % HRENRLRE IEXH RO®A  BELA & 2AVE b4 (68)  wEhE RE
‘000 %  HKSO00  HKS000 % HKS000  HKSO0O  HKS$'000
& FET FET TET FiEr T
1082 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Provision of private educational services, 19,920 3.34% 20,236 31,274 3.24% 2,988 - -
Investments Limited investment in securities, property investments (note) (note)
and money lending. (i) (i)
ER4E (AR RESMARLT  RELAHERE RERS NERERME.
1943 Silver Tide Holdings Limited Provision of formwork works services to both 7,525 0.75% 4151 6,321 0.65% 2,334 39 -
the public and private sectors in Hong Kong. (note) (note)
(##) (H)
RRERERAT AERAERLERMRMERIRRE
0330 Esprit Holdings Limited Engaged in retailing, wholesales, distribution 5,000 0.18% 3,896 4,450 0.46% 554 - -
and licensing of garment and non-apparel
products under the brands Esprit and edc.
BEBRERERAR #BEspritRedcRRAXEFREERNBE #
B AERMREERRY-
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited Manufacture of custom-made furniture, the 22173 6.39% 17,738 4,346 0.45% (3,636) - -
design, manufacture and sale of mattress (note) (note)
and soft bed products, property investment, (i) (i)
securities investment and money lending.
EXER (BR)BRERAA LERERA Rib LERBERBARRER:
NERE RERERNE
0164 China Baoli Technologies Holdings  Engaged in the mobile technologies business, 12,000 2.04% 4,800 3,960 0.41% (840) = =

Limited
RN NAERERAA

securities trading and investment business.

REBBRARE FRRARREEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBAEEBIN HUBTIIR)

16 Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

16 BAVEFABRRZEHMEE

(%)

@ REBZLTRERS(F

2021
—E--f

Percentage of
total issued
share capital
Number of ~ owned by
Stock code Name of investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group
1E BERORA
R % HREARLE TEXH kR BELH
o %

&
1082 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments  Provision of private educational services, 19,920 3.34%

Limited investment in securities, property investments

1725

1587

8103

Note:

and money lending.

BRUE (ER)RAREARAT  REAMIARE REER NERARNE.

EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited Manufacture of custom-made furniture, the design, 22,173 6.39%
manufacture and sale of mattress and soft
bed products, property investment, securities
investment and money lending.
EXER (B BRERAA LERERA it EERBERBALRER
NERE BFRARMGA:

Eternity Technology Holdings Limited Provision of design enhancement and verification, 3,265 1.09%
offering of technical advice and engineering
solutions, raw materials selection and
procurement, quality control, logistic and delivery

of electronic products.
EERRERERAR RUSTER I ARREE REEWEAR
TRERFR RUHHAERRE EE259
RRRARERRS-
Shineroad International Holdings Limited  Provision of food ingredients and food additives to 10,000 1.47%
food manufacturers.
fEERERERAR BAREEERERARHRAGANA
Hmvod Limited Provision of services and solutions on cyber 912 1.00%

security to customers, providing multi media
related services and content and investment
holding.

Hmvod & E R AR REFPREAERZBERBAFE RESHE
EERKRARAREERR-

Investment costs in these investee companies represented
the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The
investments in these investee companies were made by
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in
these investee companies which were made in prior years,
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) and recognised at
the financial year end of the respective years. The fair value
gain/(loss) of these investee companies for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 excluded fair value gain/(loss)
being recognised in prior years.

Fair value

atthe  Percentage

end of the tothe  Fairvalue Dividend
reporting Group's ~ gain/[loss) Gainon  received for

Cost period  total assets  for the year disposal the year
ETEE  ERATE
RERHE  AESE Wi/ ERELM
A ZATE 4] (B8)  hEks &
HK$ 000 HKS 000 % HKSO00  HKSOOO  HK$O00
FET Tz Tz 7 7Rz
20,236 28,286 2.88% 13,368 24 =
(note) (note)
(W) (Hit)
17,738 7,982 081% 11,762 - -
(notg) (note)
(Hi) ()
4,901 6,803 0.69% (2,311) = =
(note) (note)
(W) (Hit)
6771 4,400 0.45% (100) = =
(notg) (note)
(#i) ()
861 2,453 0.25% 1,692 2,329 -
Bt RZEHERERRZRERKTEY

BB ZEWIRE R R ZH A &
EENBEFEMZSEWIRERR
EHERE - RN BEFERZSER
RERAIEE 2 Z B REMS -
HEYBRRAFEKRZ (EI8) -
VTREFEVRFELERAER -
 E_E__FR-_F-Z—F=
A=+ BLEFE ZSEHERER
AlzAFERZ(BE)TaE

77

i

PBREFERRBZATERRE (B
1B/
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Komg do\lars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BAEZAIN BB TR

16 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continuead)

(b) Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 20 December 2021, the Group subscribed two-
year maturity 15% coupon convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$4,700,000 from a private
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“Issuer”).

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds had:

i) an option to request the Issuer to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued
and unpaid interest at the date of redemption on
14 December 2023 or the occurrence of other
conditions as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement; and

ii) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Issuer at
the conversion price based on certain conditions
on the date of conversion as provided for under
the definitive subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with
abovementioned options, were classified as a
financial asset at FVPL and recognised at fair
value.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TS R Yt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSAE AN BB TIIR)

17 Trade and other receivables

FEWE 55K A
W ER R

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance

Deposits &)
Prepayments A FRIE
Other receivables E b fE W R IA

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments
and deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits
amounting to HK$8,891,000 (2021: HK$7,256,000), which
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
after more than one year. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as

expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts
due from slimming business partners and consultants of
HK$49,557,000 (2021: HK$62,001,000) and advances to

staff of HK$277,000 (2021: HK$202,000).

17

PR & 2 FRTE I H RO

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE T FAETT
108,240 144,042
(7,881) (12,715)
100,359 131,327
15,042 17,151
3,182 10,018
60,966 77,352
79,190 104,521

STARKE 2 H b R FRIE - FBE N RIB
rZeshAHe 2AZKEREREMEZ S
8,891,000/ 7T (=&
B TEEARNBR -—FrKbEsERA
M FAHEMERE S MIE Rt E
HREEHR—FAKRESERERAX -

£ 17,256,000

FTARE B 2 H M pEWRIE A R R R
(BB REMZ $IE49,557,0007% T

—Z - —£:62,001,00057T) kA 8
T8t 2 FKIE277,0008 7 (ZT=—4F:
202,000/ 7T ) °
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZREIN BB TIIR)

17 Trade and other receivables (Continuead) 17

(@) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Less than 1 month LHEA

1 to 2 months 12218 A

More than 2 months but Z R 2fE A8 D R4E A
less than 4 months

More than 4 months but Z 4@ 1B D R1218 A
less than 12 months

More than 12 months 1218 A LA £

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 27(a).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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FEW & 5 08 R H A UK IR

(%)
@ HRECDHT
REBHR BRESHHEA (ERHE

SRR ERBRER) KK
DT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
93,770 122,121
5,951 4,359

605 3,059

&8 225

- 1,663

100,359 131,327

JEWE 5 FE — MR B EG e
30ZEQ0REH-AEBEFEERRXZ
B FBHRME27() -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i m SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
£ 1 ) 2 N

(BEEEMANN HUETIIR)

18 Loans and interest receivables 18

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.

FEWE R FIE

AEBRKRERRNMNEBENBBRHE
RTFARAEZEMBRARZRERBE
E-ARBRIBEREFEEREERKE
REMNBUZEREEERR EBEE
HEMB NG

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
K%B5 Ae®s A Ex¥s  Aews s

HK$’000  HK$'000

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000

FAET FAET FAET FAT FAET FET

Secured loans by mortgage KB EEMEH 30,700 - 30,700 = = =
Personal guaranteed loans BAERER 35,600 657 36,257 10,363 657 11,020
Unsecured loans EHEARR 63,945 2,759 66,704 77,546 1,895 79,441
130,245 3,416 133,661 87,909 2,552 90,461

Less: loss allowance o EERE (29,740 (2,500)  (32,240)  (29,048) (1,039)  (30,087)
100,505 916 101,421 58,861 1,513 60,374

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
5% to 48% (2021: 5% to 48%) per annum and repayable on
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

ERERIAFF RN FoEE48E (ZF
——F :5EFE48E)FE BAREAHN
BB EROE PR ARIEAEEEEE R

BE-
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CEEET N

A TS R)

18 Loans and interest receivables (continued)

(@) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due

dates:

Current

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due

3 to 6 months past due

6 to 12 months past due
More than 12 months

past due

Less: Loss allowance

18 EWERKFE &)
@ EREDMN
HEREHIHAZERESTHOT
2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXxis HMNEBS #@y BEIRHH FMEID @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
bzt 83,100 552 83,652 49,395 1,475 50,870
B 1E A 370 = 370 = = =
BEZE3MEA 3,826 220 4,046 = 1,077 1,077
AHASE6ME A 15,395 1,193 16,588 2,120 = 2,120
BHeE 121 A 2,091 114 2,205 754 = 754

BEEE12MA

25,463 1,337 26,800 35,640 = 35,640
W EERE (29,740) (2,500)  (32,240)  (29,048) (1,039)  (30,087)
100,505 916 101,421 58,861 1,513 60,374

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has

been assessed by reference to historical information

about counterparty default rates. Further details on the

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 27(a).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong do\lars unless otherwise indicated)

s

18 Loans and interest receivables (continued)

(b)

B RERASN - 19 LB ST AR

Analysed by credit quality

Loans receivables that are XEBEEEHEMN

not credit-impaired

Current

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due

3 to 6 months past due

6 to 12 months past due
More than 12 months

past due

Less: Loss allowance

Loans receivables that are
credit-impaired

Current

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due
310 6 months past due

6 to 12 months past due
More than 12 months

past due

Less: Loss allowance

W&
&
B OR1EA
B Z3ME A
BHE6(E A
BEeE12(E A
BEER12(8 A

R BRRE

HEEEREN
EWER
2
BHLMEA
BE1Z3MEA
BH3E6ME A
6z 128 A
BEEA121 A

B BERE

18 BRERRKRFE &)
b REEBEZIHNWT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Loan Interest Loan Interest

portion portion Total portion portion Total
%8S MEHA gy ER¥S  AeEs it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
83,100 552 83,652 49,395 1,475 50,870
370 - 370 - - -
3,826 220 4,046 - 230 230
15,395 1,193 16,588 2,120 - 2,120
2,091 114 2,205 - - -

- - - 21,199 - 21,199
(4,277) (1,163) (5,440) (13,853) (192) (14,045)
100,505 916 101,421 58,861 1,513 60,374
- - - - 847 847

- - - 754 - 754
25,463 1,337 26,800 14,441 - 14,441
(25,463) (1,337) (26,800) (15,195) (847) (16,042)
100,505 916 101,421 58,861 1,513 60,374
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br AN B TIITR)
19 Amount due from a related party 19 EBER—BBEEALTIE
2022 2021
—=2-_ —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Amount due from a holder of E — B IFIERER
non-controlling interest BB ARIE 3 2
The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest B —2BEEALTREBEAEER 28K
free and repayable on demand. BIRERKER-
20 Contract liabilities 20 EHEE
2022 2021
—_=2- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipts from sales of prepaid REBEERNEREEND
beauty packages WA 3,412 11,601
When the Group receives a deposit before the service REB R IR A ATREUE & K & %) H
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at TNEBEEHEBELSEZRERGEAN
the start of a contract until the revenue recognised when BROKEBBIZENEEAILL - A5E
services rendered exceeds the amount of the deposits. BEUR-—TEHEMNES HIETRS
The Group typically receives a certain deposit, which is R R S B RS 5 R E QR HE -

negotiated on case by case basis with customers, on
acceptance of slimming service contracts.
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(BSAE AN BB TIIR)

20 Contract liabilities (continued) 20 EHNEE#®)

21

The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as
follows:

BRABZEHHALT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH] 11,601 11,607
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result FREERREMEE 2
of recognising revenue during the year ABHEaEZRDT
that was included in the contract REFNFAEGHEE
liabilities at the beginning of the year (11,204) (11,374)
Increase in contract liabilities as HEBRNEREEMELEZ
a result of sales of prepaid BHEBEEMN
beauty packages 52,643 53,966
Decrease in contract liabilities as FARBRUAMEEZ
a result of recognising revenue during BHREEZRDTIETA
the year that was included in new FRFLZ2HEHNEE
contract liabilities entered during
the year (49,644) (42,762)
Exchange adjustments bE A% 16 164
At the end of the year RER 3,412 11,601
Trade and other payables 21 BENESREREMEBENARKIE
2022 2021
—=2-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables ERE 5 RIE 1,502 1,436
Other payables and accrued charges HihEIRIBEREFTER 126,974 142,709
128,476 144,145

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
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(B SBHZHIN HUETIIR)

21 Trade and other payables (continued) 21 BERESRERAEMENRE
(4&)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with AT Bt AERTE 5508 & E b FE 3R
the following ageing analysis, based on the invoice date, as BHRENEBEZRB(ERBEERHIRE
of the end of the reporting period: WMEARZ BRI DT
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month 1E A R 1,502 1,436
22 Lease liabilities 22 HEE®E
At 31 March 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-_E-_—_F#=A=+—H HEAEA
follows: MU T EFER
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 1 year 1FE R 5,439 9,174
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FERN 1,154 2,353
6,593 11,5627
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e TS R Yt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BSBEFRAINN HUABTIIR)

23 Income tax in the consolidated statement 23 ZREMBRTRAZFAER

of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

@ RESHBRRRAZERBIERE:

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BANEH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)  — FRNEWE (#1:26(a)) (461) =
- Provisional tax paid —BENEEH 132 573
— Balance of profit tax provision -~ HRBEFEMNER
relating to prior years, net BEBEHFE 20 (529)
(309) 44
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EFTSR
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)  —FRNEWE (#/:26(a)) (8,709) (10,155)
— Provisional tax paid — BT 6,969 7,498
- Exchange realignment —[E R (128) (86)
(1,868) (2,743)
(2,177) (2,699)
Represented by: IATFIEE KRR
Current tax recoverable AT Y el BN ER RS 1E
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH 529 573
Current tax payable FEAT & BRI IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENER (838) (529
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEEMER (1,868) (2,743)
(2,706) (3,272)
2,177) (2,699)
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BAETHAN  HABTIIR)

23 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax (b)

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (i)

The components of deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of

B H

23 HREMBRRRAZAEH @

EREZRZELHELE:

N A BN AR BT
BERESDD RINERZE

financial position and the movements during the e
year are as follows:
Depreciation
in excess
of the
related Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
FEBL
HE H 1t H B
wERE =5 =
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHET FHET
Deferred tax arising DNTEEREEZ
from: EEBIE
At 1 April 2020 RZEZTF
MA—H 845 2,792 3,637
Exchange adjustments [ ¥ #§ % 72 237 309
At 31 March 2021 and HRZZT=—%F
1 April 2021 —A=+—HK
—E-—4F
MA—A 917 3,029 3,946
Credited to profit or loss &+ A% (47:76)

(note 6) (939) (3,103) (4,042)
Exchange adjustments [ i % 22 74 96
At 31 March 2022 RZTZ_F

=A=+—H” = - _

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&
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e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BZB TR BB THIR)

23

24

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not
recognised:

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$329,122,000
(2021: HK$341,474,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$63,288,000 (2021:
HK$43,884,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits, against which the assets can
be utilised, will be available in any relevant tax
jurisdiction or entity. Of the total tax losses,
HK$66,027,000 (2021: HK$93,488,000) will
expire within 5 years and the remaining tax losses
of HK$263,095,000 (2021: HK$247,986,000)
have no expiry date under the current tax
legislation. Other temporary differences are not
material.

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of
the Group and the eligible employees are each required to
make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately, there is no forfeited contribution that
may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

23 HREMBRRKRAZFER (2

b) EEBIE ()

(i) FAERELHEALE BE:

HE-_Z-_—_F#=ZA=+—
H - B AR RS RE
RN EETKRAIEB KRR
ERMEBEFNNUTBAEE K
AEBUTERRFAHRIEESE
329,122,000 L (=& = —
1 341,474,000 70) & AT 40
TR B 2= 863,288,000/ 7T
— T~ — 443,884,000/
T)BEREEHBEEE -HE
B 18 BB ® 0 66,027,000 7T
— T~ —4:93,488,000/8
TT)BRAFRER MHT
Fi18/E518263,095,000% 7T (=
T~ — 4 : 247,986,000/ 7T )
BBERTHATERERA - H
MhE R ZRIT REK -

24 SEMHRFRKEE

REBEREEB RS MEQE S S &
BREBEEBERREGD ([ZEH]) BDEE
EREBRAZEERIAGNME LB
(TRBETE]) BESAERBHEL
RAABERZEREFRMNEE - RIFR
BeFtE AKREETHERARARAGER
BEXBEALREBEABAR Z5%AGE
TR & Ao b5k - & 77 2 B H R
LR %E A% A30,0008 T - @52
TR 2 HRENES R 8 - BB 2R W2 3R
A HARBRRNRDRERFKFE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BERIN H

24

25

B AE TR )

Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, certain employees of the
Group had completed the required number of years of
service under the Ordinance and are eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment. The Group
is only liable to make such payments when the termination
meets the required circumstances specified in the Ordinance
and the employees’ entitlement is not covered by the
aforesaid MPF scheme. At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF scheme and the accrued
interest thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

(@) Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSATHIN BB THR)

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.

25 BmEEROARRS @)

@

RIEBE—RE-AZTNEREH 2B
BRFESTEI (&)

BRERREBIETRTAERZ
HE-BOBRESTHEAERN
ARB-—RARAEBEK -BRE
ZITEHBRETEERRT IE
BRENKLBBEFRIGITE-
BRI E R R BE T
FRIABRHOBRE-

RBEERERT & R A RRMEMEAM
BT BIBER RO ERITEZAAN
BRETEBREET R R
TZBROh&ESEE THEETE
EEITRN Z230% °

BT A KRR IR & &
ARABEMEMBRESERSAE
ERZEARLBRE(BREET
B RETEZBRE)
FE1T (B AT B 3 17 2 1D AR 35 1
REBEREBHIEERT @A S
HEBRLAHERTRNBE 2
1% » BI 7S 2% &) 28 3A Utk 3% 58 ek 37 BX
BARBBRRNBIERERANEG -
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CEEELTS

A TTHIR)

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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i m SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBFAN HUBTYIR)
25 Equity-settled share-based transactions 25 BREERGDEARRE 2
(Continued)
(b) The terms and conditions of the grants are as b BHERRGHEDT:
follows:

Number

of options Vesting conditions

BRERA BE&N
Options to directors:
RTESCHERE:
- granted on 10 March 2016 227,642 Immediate from the date of grant
-RZE—X"E=A+H ROEBERLASHE
- granted on 31 August 2018 1,821,125% Immediate from the date of grant
—-RZE-N\FEN\A=+—8H REOEEXLAHE
- granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the date of grant
-RZE-_-—%-AtH RORBEXLAHE
- granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the date of grant
-R-ZE-—%-A+H R ZRERE A HE
Options to employees:
BRTEIZERE:
- granted on 10 March 2016 227,641 Immediate from the date of grant
-RZZE-RE=H+H ROBBERLAHE
- granted on 31 August 2018 1,138,200 Immediate from the date of grant
-RZE-N\FNA=+—H ROEBERLAHE
- granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the date of grant
-RZE-_-—%-A1H R ZRERE B HE
- granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the date of grant
-R-ZE-—%-A+H R ZRERE A HE
Options to a consultant:
BRYBEBRE:
- granted on 31 August 2018 682,925# Immediate from the date of grant
-RZE-N\FNA=1+—H R ZRER L A HE
- granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the date of grant
-R-Z-—%-A+H R ERER L A HE
Total share options granted 9,350,991
P % L B R 2 28
i The number of options disclosed above were adjusted to .

reflect the effect of capital reorganisation (see note 26(a)(ii))
during the prior year. These share options had been also
cancelled with effect from 29 December 2020.

Contractual
life of
options Tranche
BREZ
BREH #R
5.0 years N/A
5.0% TEM
5.0 years N/A
5.0F TEA
5.0 years 1
5.0
5.0 years 2
5.0F
5.0 years N/A
5.0% NEm
5.0 years N/A
5.0 TEA
5.0 years 1
5.0
5.0 years 2
5.0F
5.0 years N/A
5.0% NEm
5.0 years 2
5.0%

EXFBEECEREZEE RN £—
FHEHARUARMBRASH L
(FE2BIM E26(a)(i)) - 2 S B E
NELFH BT _FTF+ A
—tABBER-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br AN B TIITR)

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

25 RELHROGARRS 9

(c) The number and weighted average exercise prices

of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at REFHARITHE
the beginning of the year

Cancelled during the year ~ R F A FEH

Granted during the year REAE M

Outstanding at the end of ~ RELREKITE
the year

Exercisable at the end of RFEAIT(E
the year

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hn#EF 15 BRE ETH BB R
TREE #A 7B %A

HK$ HK$

ET BT
0.8700 5,253,458 3.8760 4,097,533
N/ATE A - 3.8760 (4,097,533)
N/ATRERA = 0.8700 5,253,458
0.8700 5,253,458 0.8700 5,253,458
0.8700 5,253,458 0.8700 5,258,458

The options outstanding at 31 March 2022 had an
exercise price of HK$0.8700 (2021: HK$0.8700) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.87

years (2021: 4.87 years).
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=

(BHBE AN

9 LAS 70 R )

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted was measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted on 10 February
2021 was measured by reference to valuations
performed by CHFT Advisory And Appraisal Limited,
independent professional valuer not connected to
the Group, based on the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option was used as an
input into this model.

25 R

@

BREZ A FERRBR

AREBREMERIRE 2 2F
BN2EMBEHBREZAFER
E-HBAR-ZF-—F-_A+HE
hWeBREz A FERZ2ZERARE
B EmEAE B EXGEMEY
FHAMEARABMEL ZEER
“HEANREEERAGE-BRE
ZENEFHOCREZREZB AR
b

Share options granted on
10 February 2021
R-ZB-Z-SZA+tHEHZ

Significant assumptions BERRBEZ BB iR

Tranche #k 1 2
Fair value at measurement date R 2ERAHZAFE 0.440 0.411
Share price BB HK$0.87 87T HK$0.87% T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.87/& 70  HK$0.877%8 T
Expected volatility (expressed FEERE (R_EABAETEE

as historical volatility used RIRIIVER £ 1R

in the modelling under

binominal lattice model) 67.56% 67.56%
Option life (expressed as historical ~ BEMAEFH (R - BN EE

volatility used in the modelling of & & %I & E S S5 18 ) 5.0 years 5.0 years

binominal lattice model) 5.0 5.0
Expected dividends TEHAR B Nil £ Nil £
Risk free interest rate (based on ERREEEX (RE-—REERF

Generic Hong Kong Government Tﬁ%ﬁz,m25 FELEEX)

Yield - 5Y) 0.42% 0.42%
Share options were granted under a service condition. AR IR —IBRES HRERE-
This condition has not been taken into account in ISR o BEEBHATETE
the grant date fair value measurement of the services WA RZGEHE -TREZFER

received. There were no market conditions associated
with these share options granted.

The fair value of the share options granted to the
consultant was measured at fair value of option
granted as the participant was providing services that
are similar to those rendered by employees.

th B s 4 I 4 B

T%?EEF'EIZﬁ%l&%zﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂm
HEREZ A FEFE HDE2HE
EREZRGEEBFAREHEEMRE -
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

26 BX--REERRE

Share capital @ ®Bx
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () 2EREZFTRA
Number of
shares
B8 E
‘000 HK$’000
Fhg FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2020 of HK$0.16 each RZZE-ZTFMA—H
SREAEC.16E T 2,500,000 400,000
Capital reorganisation (note (ii)) P A E LR (7 EEG)) 37,500,000 =
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and RZT-—®#=A=+—8"
31 March 2022 of HK$0.01 each T -FWA-BH K
—2-—F#=A=+—H
FRMEE.01E T 40,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares: =Rl
At 1 April 2020 of HK$0.16 each RZZE-ZFTFMA—H
SR EE0. 168 T 750,494 120,079
Capital reorganisation (note (ii)) AR A E B (B aEe)) (675,445) (119,329)
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and RZE-_—F=A=+—8"
31 March 2022 of HK$0.01 each R —FWOA—BRK
—E--_F#=ZHA=+—H
SR EEC.01ET 75,049 750

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(a)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii) Capital reorganisation

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting

held on 11 November 2020, the resolutions

approving the capital reorganisation involving the
share consolidation, the capital reduction and the
share sub-division (the “Capital Reorganisation”)

was duly passed by way of poll. The Company
completed the implementation of the Capital

Reorganisation on 13 January 2021,

in which the

Capital Reorganisation involved:

(1)

@)

3)

Share consolidation

Every 10 issued and unissued ordinary
shares of HK$0.16 each were consolidated
into 1 new ordinary share of HK$1.60 each.

Capital reduction

The par value of existing issued shares
were reduced from HK$1.60 to HK$0.01
by cancelling the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$1.59 on
each of the then issued shares (the “Capital
Reduction”). The credit arising from the
Capital Reduction of HK$119,329,000 were
credited to the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Share sub-division

Every authorised but unissued ordinary
shares of HK$1.60 each were sub-divided
into 160 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.

26 ﬁzl-( 1;%1%&HX¢,\ (#&)

@ BA(E)

(i) RFZEH

RE_ZF_ZFF+—-H+—H
BITZBREFRAE AW
KB & 6 - BN B R K B £

HRzRAERE ([RAEA])

Z/;&L%WJ/ATXH?

R EIE

ABB-ARAR T —F
—At+T=BxRXKETRAE
RN N R Nt S

(1)

@

(&

=N

B1ORSKREEO.16/4
TZBEBETRRBETE
BRAHAIKREREE
1.608 T2 M E @M -

BB

BBEIHEARR ZHE
BR(AERERC BT
Bn1.698 TRE)  #
RECBRITRD 2EE
A 1.6078 7T Al R £0.01
BT (TERAHR]) -
B AN B R E £ 2 # R
119,329,000/% 7t B A BR
JMERRRIZBFEE-

B 77 A

T RMEE1.608 T2 &

FRARBEITEREKDF
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii) Capital reorganisation (Continued)

Following the Capital Reorganisation, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$400,000,000 divided into 40,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 75,049,354
shares were in issue and fully paid.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$Nil).

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands where a company issues shares at a
premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum
equal to the aggregate amount of the value of
the premiums on their shares shall be transferred
to share premium account. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in a
position to pay its debts as when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(r) ().

26 EXR--HERKRE (2

©

REMERBW (F)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B e

EHBEEEARABETEER
ZEEBRARRRER-FZF
=Ft+—-ANBZzEEEA
BRERBEOAEANRB QR
BAEBOREREREZE
HoE—TFBEARLARAA
HAR-TT=F+—-A+AHZ
BERER-

EX#E

EREEERRERINER

BB RMELZMBER

ZH - BBIREME2(v) T E
G BUOREHE -

IR 111 5% 1

P £ 3R 1t 8 FE AR IR P E 2(r) i)
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation
for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to
HK$NIl (2021: HK$2,821,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2021: HKS$NIil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare and
bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong Kong
reporting purposes, this appropriation is charged
to profit or loss and included in other payables
and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings held for
own use in note 2(g). The revaluation reserve
of the Group is distributable to the extent of
HK$3,574,000 (2021: HK$NIl).

(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the fair value of the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the net
assets of Beauty University Management Limited
(“BUML") attributable to the non-controlling
interest amounted to HK$16,492,000 (2021:
HK$16,492,000); and (ii) the excess of the fair
value of consideration received for the disposal of
25% (2021: 25%) equity interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary over the increase in the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest amounted
to HK$11,563,000 (2021: HK$11,563,000).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$477,448,000 (2021: HK$475,967,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

26 BX-RERRE (4

©

C)

©

,UJH

REMERBW (F)
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R EEFEE WREME
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges and
lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents (i.e.
net debt) and capital, which comprises all components
of equity.

The directors review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
Based
on the recommendation of the directors, the Group

consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.

will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amount due from a related party and cash and cash
equivalents.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

27
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as 5% (2021: 4%)
and 19% (2021: 15%) of total trade receivables due
from the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These take into account the customer’s past
repayment history, financial position and other factors.
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 days to 90
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27
of financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The following tables provide information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:
Expected
loss rate
BHEBR=E
%
Current (not past due) EH (k@) 1.39%
Less than 1 month past due 31 8> 52 11E A 1.55%
1 to 2 months past due wmE1=2ME A 1.35%
More than 2 but less than 40 B B 1B 2 & A
4 months past due B R41E A 2.38%
More than 4 but less than 0 BB i 418 A
12 months past due BALR12MEA 2.94%
More than 12 months
past due o Bl R B 121E A 100.00%

SHIASCMAREERAT

B &)
@ EERRE)
FEWE S5 E (E)

TRUIAMAEEYELE SR
H2 S EE RO R A
ZER

2022
—E—-—
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

REAE BERRE KREFE
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000
TET TET TET

95,085 (1,317) 93,768
5,952 (92) 5,860
666 9) 657

42 (1) M

34 ) 33
6,461 (6,461) -
108,240 (7,881) 100,359
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27
of financial instruments (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Current (not past due)
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 2 months past due
More than 2 but less than
4 months past due
More than 4 but less than
12 months past due
More than 12 months
past due

EH (RaH)
wE AR {E A
# Hi1 =218 A
i B A2 (R A
18R 41E A
i B B A4 (A A
BALR121EA8

AHEEBE121E8 A

Expected
loss rate
TRHAE R &
%

5.62%
5.97%
6.25%
7.21%

9.63%

100.00%

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss

experience in current year. These rates are adjusted

to reflect differences between economic conditions

during the period over which the historic data has been

collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of

economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.
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—E-—F
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount  allowance amount

REAE EBEEEE EFEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FET

132,307 (7,434) 124,873
4,676 (279) 4,397
192 (12) 180
111 8) 103
1,963 (189) 1,774
4,793 (4,793) -

144,042 (12,715) 131,327
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

At the beginning of the year REH]

(Reversal of impairment loss)/

impairment loss recognised VERIEN SR
Exchange adjustments ME 5 78 B
At the end of the year RER

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations

27 ERMITACEREAREERAY
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2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
12,715 5,004
(5,261) 7,065
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7,881 12,715
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27
of financial instruments (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group’s ECL model is as follows:

Category
Al

Stage 1

%R

Stage 3

H
1l
i
iy

Definition of category

BRlzE®R

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination.

BRERARGEERBRKEEN BEEE
& ARHBEEERENRR

Exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.

BRERAREERRD AREEG M- BRE
REERENRR

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

ERE—HAZESH HEEMNMRTERR
Ren=AFaAy2K ARBRFHA
T%,\/Jﬁﬂﬁo
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EERAY

@ FERRE)
AMEtHMEE (&)

AEBEHEEBBEEXNER 2R
agn R

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BRAANFEERREZEE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated
with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months
is recognised.

MREARKI2 HANEEREDEMHTA
BB K ATEREEEERS

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial
asset) is recognised.

HRKATEIER (ARREEEERR

TEH) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised
and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost (net of provision)
rather than the gross carrying
amount.

FRBEHMERA (NREE) (MIERE
BE)EBERNXMERKATES
BRI EN B -
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RTEACESREAKREER QY

of financial instruments (Continued) =XE D)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) @ FEEREE)
Other financial assets (Continued) B2 @mEE (&)
Loans and interest receivables JEWE KT

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 15% and 50% (2021: 7% and 27%) of
the Group’s loans and interest receivables balance
respectively as at 31 March 2022.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising
from the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by
the collaterals held, if required. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due based on good repayment records for
those loan borrowers having continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
their probability of default and exposure of default with
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted
by current and forward-looking factors.

R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=Z=+—H &K
EBERARAEABRAZERS AL
REBREWERRF B#HEIS%R
50% (ZZE=—F 7% N27%) °

EEZRH WATE BMMAIAR
RERKESMELEZEERR -
AEBVTERHEEMNATRSAEER
HEREERRZER-

EMBRAEEFELETER ZER
ERABRCHERY AEECH#
BB iB0R 2 BKER LA E
REMEEERRATEBENZR
HOMRBEEZOAEEREOR
R K2EREEEHRLR A5
BA KB RRHRBRZE D@5
At o
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

receivables are as follows:

At 1 April 2020

New loans originated
Transfer

Repaid during the year

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

New loans originated

Transfer

Repaid during the year

At 31 March 2022

By class at 31 March 2022

- Loans receivable
- Interest receivables

By class at 31 March 2021

- Loans receivable
- Interest receivables

R-ZZE-_FFMA—A
MELER

B

FRBEM

RZE-—-%=A=+—H
kZFE-Z—FMA—H

MEEER

i

FRNEEM

RZZE-Z—F=A=+—H

R-B=-Z-5=ZA=+-H
RERNE D
—EURER
— A B

R-—EB--H=ZH=+—H
RERE S
- ER
— FEWLRI B

27 tRTEzErER

BE#)

@ FERRE)

AMEtHMEE (&)

EREZRFIE (&)

EERAY

RREREMEZBESRESHMT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B-RE S-KER SZKR At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET & TET TET
93,471 40,663 - 134,134
33,795 1,521 - 35,316
(16,712) (2,0095) 18,717 S
(59,684) (16,630) (2,675) (78,989)
50,870 23,549 16,042 90,461

108,078 2,540 - 110,618

(21,612) (81) 21,693 -

(44,377) (12,106) (10,935) (67,418)

92,959 13,902 26,800 133,661
92,370 12,412 25,463 130,245
589 1,490 1,337 3,416
92,959 13,902 26,800 133,661
49,395 23,319 15,195 87,909
1,475 230 847 2,552
50,870 23,549 16,042 90,461
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

allowances is as follows:

At 1 April 2020

New originated

Impairment loss recognised

Repaid during the year

Transfer

Impact on year ended
ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the year

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

New originated

Impairment loss recognised

Repaid during the year

Transfer

Impact on year ended
ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the year

At 31 March 2022

By class at 31 March 2022

- Loans receivable
- Interest receivables

By class at 31 March 2021

- Loans receivable
- Interest receivables

R-ZE-_ZTFWA—H

MEE

EHRREERE

FAEER

LR

FRAEBBR 2 HER
EX%%ET%E@@Z
. 18

E's/a

RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H
kZE-—-F1MA—H
MELE

ERRAEEES
FRNEEN

LB
FASEBR 2 HERY
FREHEEBERRZ

g

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

R-ZE--—€=A=+-—H
RERE D
- EWRER
—EWF B

R-ZE-_—-§=H=+—H
RER D
- ERER
— EFI B

27 SWMIASHAREERAY

4=

\‘5/

@ FERRE)
Atz MEE (&)
EREZRFIE (&)

FHEEERNEEEREEES
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B-RE SRR SHZKER wat
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
813 14,245 - 15,058
89 - - 89
5,991 5,700 - 11,691
(742) (7,957) - (8,699)
(64) (4,082) 4,146 =
- 52 11,896 11,948
6,087 7,958 16,042 30,087
666 - - 666
1 7,428 - 7,429
(2,127) (5,056) - (7,183)
(4,335) (6,423) 10,758 -
(48) 1,289 - 1,241
244 5,196 26,800 32,240
243 4,034 25,463 29,740
1 1,162 1,337 2,500
244 5,196 26,800 32,240
6,083 7,770 15,195 29,048
4 188 847 1,039
6,087 7,958 16,042 30,087
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
related party and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2022
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to HK$51,941,000 (2021: HK$64,252,000)
in total.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In calculating the
ECL rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&
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STRITAZERMEREER QT

BE#)
@ EERRE)
HME@EE (%)

REHI AT EZ A EE

RBHEKAGFECHEHMWEREE
BEERE R H M E W RIE - B —
FEEAIREBEUARBRE LIRS
EBYW RTE-_—_F=ZR=+—
H A&EE 2 EMERREBEZIES
FRERBESRHERER 2 RE
MEIRNZREREZESHE
551,941,000 L (Z&E = — -
64,252,000/ 7T ) °

AEBEBRBLREHAEREEEE
HEEFIRBERGAELEERR
R ERBEEERXE A&E
EEZRBHEUFBAZELBLRE
W AT 2 ZEEEBUREL S
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RTEACESREAKREER QY

of financial instruments (Continuea) B®)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) @ FEEREE)
Other financial assets (Continued) B2 @mEE (&)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) KA EC R BEE
(#%&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL FHAE—BERETHERREEES
allowances under stage 1 is as follows: BEREZESH 2 HNOT:
HK$ 000
FET
At 1 April 2020 RZEZZFTFMA—A 635
Impairment loss recognised ERERREEE 5,387
Write-off 1 84 (18)
At 31 March 2021 and RZE-_—F=A=+—HBERK
1 April 2021 —E-—FMmMA—H 6,004
Impairment loss recognised EHRBEEE 4,406
Write-off 1 85 (146)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZ—F=A=+—H 10,264
Except for the abovementioned receivables, the Group Br Ful EURRIESN AEE B E12
has assessed that the expected credit losses rate for B ABHEEBEEB AN GILZEHEK
other financial assets at amortised costs is immaterial At EvEMEMEECEBEE
under 12-month ECL method. Thus, no loss allowance BEREVTIAER-BA REHEB
for other financial assets at amortised costs at the end R U EBILREHEK AT EZEM
of the reporting period. CREEELEMEBEERE-
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 € TIESREREERDYF

of financial instruments (Continued) EXE -9,
(b) Liquidity risk b FKBESERE
Individual operating entities within the Group are $EIDﬁTTIEJ KEBERBBEAER
responsible for their own cash management, including FgZzRe BREREeRHBEH
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the "E &%ﬁiﬁ% RAEMNTESRRESH
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, ROHEEEBRASE THEEEEK
subject to approval by the Company’s board when TR -AGSRARAAESSHE - KE
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of ErBRREHERARHESS
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor FoUREGFTRIA© RER
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains AIRTmE LR 2 ESFFEERKE
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable TEoRBE L RAHERERERE
marketable securities and adequate committed lines LWENMEREBERBESTE -
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETAEEHAGERERH
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the KRB TENIEBE KHEAOREM
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the REeRE (BERBEHFEL
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (MEFEIZREHRBRBITHE
payments computed using contractual rates or, if FEZFMBENF) RAEEAEE
floating, based on rates current at the end of the Iz &EFEAHERE:
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2022
—BECZCfF
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted oron less than
amount cash flow demand 5 years
BHRER 1A BB1E
RHE BenEfs EEX BHHRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables AN 1,502 1,502 1,502 -
Other payables and accrued charges E fth J& (1 208 I e 5t B 126,974 126,974 126,974 -
Lease liabilities HEAR 6,593 6,848 5,675 1,173
135,069 135,324 134,151 1,173
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27 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (continuea)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Trade payables ERESHA
Other payables and accrued charges £ & {1 5
Lease liabilities HEERE

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits, loans receivable and lease liabilities.
Deposits placed and borrowings issued at variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is shown below.

BN e E A

27 TRIAZERAREERAYF
B®)
b RBESERE(Z)
2021
—E-—F
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than
amount cash flow demand 5 years
BHRUE 1ERHK HR1E
FHE BRensfg fEE K BAREE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FRET FET FET
1,436 1,436 1,436 -
142,709 142,709 142,709
11,527 11,926 9,480 2,446
155,672 156,071 153,625 2,446
© FIERER

AEBZMNEXREBREZRBRITH
R RBRERLRBEERE-EFNRZ
FERERFERERBEHZIEED
FSAEEAZRSREN XE R
RAFEMRRER AEEEE R
BERZMNEEEGN TXIIR-
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27
of financial instruments (Continuea)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less

interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at the
end of the reporting period.

STRITAZERMEREER QT

BE#)
© FIRERZ)
FIRAE

TRAMAEERZRMRZFR
FE(ARITEFRM S ERmAE
RZIVR) ZFEAE -

2022 2021
—ZE2-= —ET-—F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRI = B R A =&
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FET
Variable rate deposits: FEER:
Bank deposits and RITEHR
cash at bank RITIR® 1.4% 127,310 1.4% 95,706
Net fixed rate deposits/ EBEERS
(borrowings): (fBE)F8:
Loans receivable FE UL E 3K 5.0% — 5.0% —
48.0% 100,505 48.0% 58,861
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.0% (6,593) 5.0% (11,527)
93,912 47,334
Total net deposits GFRFEE 221,222 143,040
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2022,
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,

it is estimated that a general

with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax by
HK$955,000 (2021: would have decreased/increased
the Group’s loss after tax by HK$718,000) and would
have decreased/increased the Group’s accumulated
losses by HK$955,000 (2021: HK$718,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected (2021:
HKS$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end
of the reporting period. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

27 %@IELZEEQEL&%%’IE&@”

©

@

R ()
BB E D

R-ZZTE-—_=—F=A=+—8" f&&t
MELEEFATHRIOOEEST
FTBEEMEBEHTE AEE KR
1& 3 F % 12 o0 8 955,000 T
R F AEEZKRBES
B % N718,0008 7T) -
MAEBMZ Bt EIEGRLD 18
955,000 L (=& = — F :

718,000/ JT) © H fib # 25 #F 75 #§
ERNEEHTE (ZF_—F:F
BIL)

LTHGRESNBETRIAEE 2K
BEBEEZAEECNKES &
FREAFEXEHONREZFRBARELE
REEAREFHEAEEMBEA
ZZEeRmIAE RERAEERE
WEARAEATFEFERR 100
EAERAKEEREEHEET —@
iﬁ%ﬁ%mz%ﬁﬂ%T%éﬁ
""""" gt T —FRERE
HEEITOMN -

SN R

HRARDHE WA -BERAX
NEBEBZNREERFE BA
SEYEARBERESAR -

N5 B 30 B 3 SN R B - R
m - EREeERINERR LKe
ZRNFESHIPERIINERE -
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and classified
as financial assets at FVPL (see note 16).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in equity price, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax by HK$3,645,000 (2021: would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax by
HK$2,657,000) and would have decreased/increased
the Group’s accumulated losses by HK$3,645,000
(2021: HK$2,657,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not be affected (2021:
HKS$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2021.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RTEACESREAKREER QY

of financial instruments (Continued) =XE D)
(f)  Fair value measurement H ALDFEFE
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFHEISEZLHEE
Fair value hierarchy - FEER

TRENAEER 2 M KIA
REMEEZBBMBEREE
AIZE135% [ R FEFE] R
EZ=ARFEBEETHIE
ZEMEERFE - DEAIF
Bt BZEBR2ZEUTHER
AR AR BRRE
EREEMMEE :

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial assets at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 Fair value measured using only F—H EFERAF-—HKBA
valuations: Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted mE: HE(ARFEAT
quoted prices in active markets for EETIS EERA
identical assets or liabilities at the EXBRZIRER
measurement date. BHRE)GTECIRATF
&
Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2 FIH FREZLBAH
valuations: inputs i.e. observable inputs which mE: BAREF—HK2Z
fail to meet Level 1, and not using AEREASE) B
significant unobservable inputs. WHERKRBEKRTH
Unobservable inputs are inputs for B ABIERE
which market data are not available. ZAFE A B
BAZBERART
BEE 2B ASIE -
Level 3 Fair value measured using significant F=HK FRAERATTEER
valuations: unobservable inputs. mE: BAHEBFECA
FE-
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 € TIESREREERDYF
of financial instruments (Continuea) EXE -9,
()  Fair value measurement (Continued) ® ADFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFHEISEZLHEE
(Continued) (#%&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNFEER ()
The following table illustrates the fair value TRHERAEBeRMEEZR
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial FHEEFAZER:
assets:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 BEZR E=H wat
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FH&T FET FET FET
Fair value measurement R-Z-_f=H=+—H
at 31 March 2022 ZRVEFE
Financial assets at FVPL: QA FEFAEBZZ
SREE:
— Listed equity securities —REEZ LTIRAES
in Hong Kong 82,953 - 4,346 87,299
- Unlisted convertible -REBZIELD
bonds in Hong Kong AR kES - = 4,924 4,924
- Unlisted equity fundin ~ —RAEBZFELTRAES
Hong Kong - 4,995 - 4,995
82,953 4,995 9,270 97,218
Fair value measurement R-ZFE-—F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2021 ZAFETE
Financial assets at FVPL: $Z A FEFABZEZ
- Listed equity securities —REBZ ETRAE S
in Hong Kong 63,633 S S 63,633
- Unlisted equity fund —BBRIIZIELTRA
outside Hong Kong g - 8,186 - 8,186
63,633 8,186 - 71,819
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RTEACESREAKREER QY

of financial instruments (Continuea) EXE -9,
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) ® AFEFEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFHEISEZLHEE
(Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNFEER(E)
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group BE-ZT-_—_F=HA=+—H
transferred a listed equity security in Hong Kong EFE - ASERBEERBES
with a gross carrying amount of HK$7,982,000 7,982,000 THI RN BB 2
from level 1 to level 3 as the Group could not MRABHBE —REREE
obtain quoted prices in active markets due to the = H RERBTBRAZBSFRMD
suspension of share trading of an equity security. RPEEB AEB KRR
Other than that, there were no transfers between BIRRTIS 2 WIB - Britb 2 51 -
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of RBE_FT-_—_FR=-FT=—
Level 3 during the years ended 31 March 2022 FZA=Z=FT—RHIEFE F—
and 2021. The Group’s policy is to recognise WEE R BN R R
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as mEBE=-RNEAREL - AE
at the end of the reporting period in which they BrHEEREELERNFE
occur. heginy SWHMAREREEAE
o
Information about Level 2 fair value measurements BHE RN FEGEZEH
The fair values of the unlisted equity fund as at FEEMRARSGN =T ==
31 March 2022 and 2021 are determined with kZZTEZ—F=fR=+—H2
reference to the net asset value of the fund which NRFELELCLHAREES
are provided by the broker. ZEEFHEETE-
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 € TIESREREERDYF
of financial instruments (Continued) =XE D)

()  Fair value measurement (Continued) ® ADFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFHEISEZLHEE
(Continued) (#%&)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using price/earning ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack
of marketability discount of 15.80%. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 March
2022, it is estimated that with all other variable
held constant, a decrease/increase in discount
for lack of marketability by 10% would have no
significant impact on the Group’s profit or loss.

The fair value of the bonds as if they do not
include a conversion option is determined using
discounted cash flows method. A discount rate of
14.5% is applied. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount rate.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
in the convertible bonds is determined using
Binomial Lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the expected volatility. An
expected volatility of 43.1% is applied. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected volatility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSERHIN BB THIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27

of financial instruments (continuea)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

Financial assets measured at fair value

(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

The movement of the unlisted convertible

bonds and listed equity securities in fair value

measurements within Level 3 during the year

ended 31 March 2022 were as follows:

At 1 April 2020,
31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Transfer from Level 1 to
Level 3

Payment for purchases

Fair value gain/(loss)

recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2022

SHIASMAREERAT

=XE D)
® AFEFEE)
() BRAFEFEZZHBEE
(%)
B E=RAFEGEHEN
(&)
RBE-_E-_—_F=A=+—
BEFE FE=HAKRLEMTA
BREFRLETREAFLSZAQ
FEFEZHWT -
Unlisted Listed
convertible equity
bonds securities Total
Kb E
AR E S N wmat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
RZTEZTF
mA—A-
T
=A=+—Hk
—T - —F
MA—H = = =
ME—HEE
B/ - 7,982 7,982
BRI 4,700 = 4,700
REEFERZ
DNFEWRES
(&) 224 (3,636) (3,412)
RZTEZ_F
=A=+—H 4,924 4,346 9,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBFAIN HABTIIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value changes were included in “fair value
gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVPL, net” under
“revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

(ii)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2022 and 2021.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSBEFRAINN HUABTIIR)

28 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 28 eREBELEZEBEYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFMAEEEREIDELEZBEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B BREReRkIEEDH eRMEHE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities E7BENEERSRE QAN KRR
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows EMEFRAEBE 2 GFERERERT
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of NEAECREHELEZEE-

cash flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
RITEXN HEaE MEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAETT FAETT
(note 22)
(Kiat22)
At 1 April 2020 R=-Z2-2FWMA—H N 28,961 28,961
Changes from financing BEBRLSRESE :
cash flows:
Capital element of lease BENEERE 2RSS
rentals paid = (12,769) (12,769)
Interest element of lease BENEERSZFEIHD
rentals paid - (655) (655)
Proceed from a new —EMBRITER B RIA
bank loan 22,918 - 22,918
Repayment of a bank loan  EE —FRITER (22,918) - (22,918)
Interest on a bank loan —FRTERZHE (238) = (238)
Total changes from financing flE R & R E & 8 1A 58
cash flows (238) (13,424) (13,662)
Exchange adjustments fE R - 1,179 1,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SAZHES BB TIIR)
28 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 28 SRUEBELEZEBEHER @)
financing activities (Continued)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
RITEX HEEE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
(note 22)
(Hti#22)
Other changes: Hit s :
Interest on a bank loan —ERTERZFE

(note 5(a)) (K1 z#5(a)) 238 - 238
Interest on lease liabilites M E&&EZFE (Hits5(a)

(note 5(a)) - 655 655
New lease entered Rl HEE - 8,401 8,401
Adjustment as a result of RERIEHEMB AR

early termination of leases - (13,439) (13,439)
COVID-19-related rent Bli2019E Mk m S m AR A

concession received e (Kit4)

(note 4) - (806) (806)
Total changes pe ) FCE 238 (5,189) (4,951)
At 31 March 2021 and R-TE-—-F=A=+-HER

1 April 2021 —E-_—-fMA—H - 11,527 11,527
Changes from financing BEBRESHESE:

cash flows:

Capital element of lease ENHERecAEE 5

rentals paid - (11,058) (11,058)
Interest element of lease ENHEEHSZNERS

rentals paid = (441) (441)
Total changes from financing Bt &R &R E LS %E

cash flows = (11,499) (11,499)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 135 135
Other changes: Hir#5:

Interest on lease liabilites & & &2 F 8 (#it5(a))

(note 5(a)) - 441 441
New lease entered Rl ME - 5,989 5,989
Total changes g Fk - 6,430 6,430
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_—_F=ZH=+—H S 6,593 6,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSERHIN BB THIR)

29

30

Banking facilities

At 31 March 2022, the Group had general banking facilities
amounting to HK$24,666,000 (2021: HK$23,686,000) which
are secured by personal guarantee given by a director of a
subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, these facilities have not
been utilised (2021: HKS$NIil).

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 28 August 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interest in Earth Limited (“Earth”), all the obligations,
liabilities and debts owing or incurred by Earth to the
Company and shareholder’s loan to an independent third
party for a total consideration of HK$23,000,000.

On 25 September 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interest in Max Target Investment Limited (“Max Target”),
all the obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred
by Max Target to the Company and shareholder’s loan
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$1,500,000.

29

30

RITEE

NRZE-_—_F=A=+—H Xx&EE7—
REIRTTRYE 524,666,000 T (— T = —
% :23,686,0008 7T) - A— M E X 7
ZREBEEMREZEAABRERR

RERBR ZEMEHNKDA(ZF
—FFET) e

HE K E A A

RZEZZEFNAZTN\B AEEEH
RAERDA (MHER]) 22 MBERDHE -
BBk R A AR AEZ FTBER - &
BEREBEEAEBRRERTFELIE=F 8
K18 523,000,000 T °

R-Z-BEAA-+HA AEEBH
XRAERAR ([BR]) 22 Bl
£ - BB R 4 R AR R SRR 2 S 1
% REREEAREEERTBIE=
77+ #X{8 71,500,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(% BRI ¢

B AE TR )

30 Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

The assets and liabilities of Earth and Max Target disposed
at completion date comprise of:

Investment property
Intangible assets

Financial assets at FVPL
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Amount due to the Group

Net assets/(liabilities)
disposed of

Gain/(loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries:

Cash consideration

Net (assets)/liabilities
disposed of

30 HEMEBLAF (&)

RERBRHEZHHEEBRZEER

Shareholder’s loan disposed Fff H & &% 5 & 5

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration received & WIR & KB

Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of

BERE:
Earth Max Target Total
i BR PN F
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET
"EME 22,000 = 22,000
EREE - 985 985
EAFEFABRZEREE - 6 6
H e 5K IE 784 = 784
ReMReFEY = 7 7
FES AR S E R IE (18,319) (2,249) (20,568)
FTHENEE,/ (BE)Z
F R 4,465 (1,251) 3,214
HEMBAR ZWE
(E518) -
ReERE 23,000 1,500 24,500
FrheEm (BE) a2z
FRR (4,465) 1,251 (3,214)
(18,319) (2,249) (20,568)
216 502 718
HEMBARZEBESARA OGRH) FE:
Earth Max Target Total
R PN et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
23,000 1,500 24,500
FHERERBEEEED
= (7) (7)
23,000 1,493 24,493
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB B A THIR)
31 Material related party transactions and 31 ERBEAIRZRERR
balances
(a) Key management personnel remuneration @ TEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBFZEBRABZME (B
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s WME7mMEBREN FTARBEEZ
directors as disclosed in note 7 and chief executive HBEREM TITBRBE ZRE) N
officer, is as follows: ™~
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Directors B
Directors’ fee EEHE 600 600
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL = =
Salaries, allowances and other e FAMREAmER
benefits 720 720
Contributions to defined contribution 5 5E f#H FUR K ET 2 2 it 3%
retirement plan 36 36
Equity-settled share-based payment # %5 45 & i% 15 ;U 2
expense - 968
1,356 2,324
Chief executive officer THER
Salaries, allowances and e FMREAMER
other benefits 3,600 3,531
Discretionary bonuses [SREREEN - -
Contributions to defined contribution 5 7 #f FUR RT3 2 &
retirement plan 18 18
Equity-settled share-based payment # %5 45 & i% 15 1~ 25 32
expense - 330
3,618 3,879
4,974 6,203
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FMBRETATBEIRA] (R
5(b)). 5(b)) °
(b) Other related party transactions b HMBEEALRS
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the HEEALTZEBRRBERIER R
statements of financial position and in note 19. M EF19 55 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RSB )

B AE TR )

32 Financial information of the Company 32 XRRNTFHMBEER

(a)

Statement of financial position

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued
charges

Current tax payable

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

@ #BRRE

2022 2021
—ZE2-— —ET-—F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
IRBEE
RHTB AR Z’E 4 4
RBEE
NG S 487,680 485,882
FENRE - He REMEWRIE
1,338 1,285
A] Y [ %7 18 - 177
BeERBEEEY 279 478
489,297 487,822
RBaE
FESH KT B A R 3k 1A 6,102 6,109
HEtENRIERETER
2,743 2776
FE 15 BN ER R IR 34 =
8,879 8,885
RBEERE 480,418 478,937
EEFE 480,422 478,941
B #E
% < 750 750
Gk 479,672 478,191
EXER 480,422 478,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEBIN HUBTIIR)

32 Financial information of the Company 32 AAQARHMKEER @)
(Continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity b EZDBIZEBE
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RAFERR A 287 3 H &

components of equity during the year are as follows: B oHBAT

Share-based
Share Share payment Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity

Bx  BOEE ROASRESE  RHER RR4E
Note HK$'000  HK8000  HKSOOD — HKS'000  HK$'000

H# FET FAET FAET FAT FAT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-EEMA-H 120,079 787,794 6,625 (410,380) 504,118
Changes in equity for 2021: “EC-EUREREE:
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRBERZEERER
for the year - - - rdon  (@7.401)
Capital reorganisation RARER 26/a)(ii (119,329) - - 119,329 -
Cancellation of share options TR E 25 = - (6,625) 6,625 =
Issue of share options BIIRG 25 = = 2,224 = 2,204
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-ZB--£=R=+-H
R-Z--¥WA-H 750 787,794 2,224 (311,827 478,941
Changes in equity for 2022: CECCEUEREE:
Profit and total comprehensive income  F R & 2 E A58
for the year S = S 1,481 1,481
At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZE=R=+-H 750 787,794 2,204 (310,346) 480,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZREIN BB TIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information 33

At 31 March 2022, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of
these subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are set out below:

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital
DRER BRI BRIRAZRAFE
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBEXBEZMALT -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each

B 1,000k BREBEIZTLZ

B 1n

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each

BB 1RERAEIETZBRH
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each

BB 1RERAEIETZBRH
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

BB 100RERAEIETZRH
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each

0 10 EFRAEEIETZ KA
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each

BB 10RBRAEIETKH
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

BB 100k BRAEIE T2 K
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

BB 100k BRAEIE T2 KA
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each

3 1RERAEEIETZ KA
Linstitut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

de beauté (en France) a Limited
B 100k BRREEIET KH
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B B 2 R E

N-E-_—_F=ZA=+—H ARAEE
FEERTIMEAR (BLABRAR
AR BB ASNK S RS AR B
HEBLABRAAARERZEER
BOMEEEZ - BREATHIN FIFERG
BHRAALTBAR ZEMBARTNR=-ZT ==

FZA=T—HZHEBOT:

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREARESLY

Direct Indirect  Principal activity

EE BiE IEEH

100% - Investment holding
K&K

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Investment in securities and
investment holding
REESRRERK

100% - Inactive
Emex

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Inactive
EE: 34

100% - Inactive
EEL-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TS R Yt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSRA TR BB TIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of
Name of company operations
ARER EEHY
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. (Continuead)
REBBEXHEEAMAL (&)
Bravo Media Limited Hong Kong
Gold Platform Holdings Limited Hong Kong
B
Creative Time Investments Limited Hong Kong
B
Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong
B
Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong
BiE
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited Hong Kong
(“SST(SH)") (note (i) (#7())

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou) Hong Kong
Limited (“SST(HZ)")

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd. Hong Kong
(“SST(SHD)') (note (i) ( H13Z(i))
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Limited Hong Kong
Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong
(Shenzhen) Limited (“SST(SZ)")
&%
Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong
Silver Ally International Limited Hong Kong
RIFERAERAR Bk

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERTRBEREFE

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZBRG

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETRG

100 shares of US$1 each
1000 B M E E1E T2 B

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIZET 2R

100 shares of US$1 each
1000 B R E E1E T2 5

1,000 shares of US$1 each

1,000 BREBEIZTL
(i)

100 shares of US$1 each
100k BRAEIE T2 K
10 shares of US$1 each
10k BRAEIETZKH

100 shares of US$1 each
100 BRREE 1R T 2 K

100 shares of US$1 each
100R B RREE 1R T2 KH

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERAEIE T2 KRG

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIZETZRG

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZRG

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT
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Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BEREERERLH

Direct Indirect
H# LiE=3
100% -
100% -
100% -
- 100%

- 100%

- 50%

- 51%

- 50%

- 100%

- 100%

- 51%

- 100%
100% -

33 MEBARIER &)

Principal activity

TEEH

Investment holding

REAR

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding
REER

Inactive
LEex

Investment holding

BRI

Investment holding

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
FEME
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZEEHAEN HUETIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of
Name of company operations
NE AR EEHY

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. (Continuea)

REBEXBEAMAYL : (&)

Silver Shore Holdings Limited Hong Kong
Win Ease (BVI) Limited Hong Kong
BEERARF R
Profit Hunting Development Limited Hong Kong
Sky Hero Capital Limited Hong Kong
Incorporated in the United States of
America (“USA’):
REFIZEFE ([£H])FHAL -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific USA
Research Institute Limited
E35
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong
BRATERERAF £
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong
EgEBERAF R
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong
Institute Limited
EEZREZRRRABRETOERAA BB
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong
Institute (TST) Limited
ﬂ*%ﬁ%%%/\fﬂ%fﬁ BRBL (K)H) &
BRR
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited
EHEREZTREEBRET L (REE) BB
ARRR
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong
EREZERBRA Ak

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
EROTRBEREFE

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZBH

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETBRH

1 share of US$1 each
1R EREEIETBH

10 shares of US$1 each

10RERAEEIFTZRA

1 share of US$1 each

1REREAEIZTZRA

1 share of HK$1
1R1E T2 KD

33 MEBARER &)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

10,000 shares of HK$10,000 -

10,000/% 10,0007 7T Z i 3

18,750 shares of HK$18,750 -

18,750/%18,750/8 T 2 Ik 3

10,000 shares of
HK$4,905,100

10,000%4,905,1007% 7L.2
b4

100 shares of HK$100

100f% 1007 7T 2 & 17

100 shares of HK$100

100R% 1007 7T .2 & 17
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BERERRERLA
Direct Indirect
H#E B
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100%
100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

TEXH

Investment holding

RAERK

Investment in securities

Investment holding

REER

Inactive
EE:3 -4

Inactive

Inactive
LE2%

Sale of health and beauty products
and investment holding

HERRREBERAR
REER

Provision of beauty and slimming
services

REXTREBRYE

Provision of beauty and slimming
services

RUEXARGBRE

Provision of beauty and slimming
services

REXTRHBRYE

Provision of management
consultancy services

REUEERFARE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEBEFHIN HUBTIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

33 MEBARIER &)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BERBEERERLA
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
ARER EEHY ERTRBEREFE E# BE FEER
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continuea)
REBAMAL - (&)
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of advertising agency
services
REEEREAERAF BB 10,0003%10,000% 70 2 & 3 REEERERY
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
WEBERAF BB 1B T2 R REZK
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Sale of health and beauty products
SR 5 ARAH 0 10088 1007% 7T 2 & 19 HERRRERER
Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 S 75%  Property holding
(“SSTIHL”)
BAERRERARAR ((EyERARK]) &2 1008100722 1 13 BENE
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding
FEARRRA BE 10,0008%10,0007% 7T 2 & 13 REZKR
Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
KNEBBERAR Bk 1R T2 R REER
Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%  Inactive
RNERERAR 0 1R T2 R TEex
BUML Hong Kong 100 shares of S 80%  Provision of a proprietary internet
HK$19,797,305 platform to promote and sell
slimming beauty and health
related services and products
XEAZ BE 100/% 19,797,305 7T 2 & 17 REZERBTA NEBERHEE
BRETRREREBIBRBR
Efm
Trillion Well International Finance Company Limited  Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding
ERERMBERAF B 1R1E T 2 R REZKR
Sun Fung Capital Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 100%  Provision of money lending
services
HERE (TN BERAR ) 10,000/% 10,000 7T 2 fx 3 RERERS
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of S 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming
HK$15,010,000 services
EREAEEBRAA B 10,000%15,010,000/ 7T 2 REXAREBRE
7
Kowloon West Properties Development Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 = 100%  Property holding
B 1R1B T 2 R FEN%E
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100% Inactive
BE 10081007 7T 2 B {7 L3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZEEHAEN HUETIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 33 MIBARIER (&)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BEREERER L
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
AAER EEBY BRARBERAHE =k B IEEH
Incorporated in the PRC:
RAOBEMAT
HE-—EBEERERAF ((LE-EE) The PRC Registered capital of - 50%  Provision of beauty and slimming
(note (i), (i) and (iv)) (B130) - (i) R (iv)) US$150,000 services
FE & A°150,000% 7T REEBRABRS
EERGBEHEERRR (RABL) The PRC Registered capital of - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and
(note (i) ( H1#£(ii)) US$5,000,000 skin care products
HE 1 & 45,000,000% 1T AEHEECHREBER
—ERRABRBEFINERAA (‘—EEFRI) The PRC Registered capital of - 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming
(note (if) ( #132(i)) HK$3,500,000 services
FE # it & 283,500,0005 7T REZAREERS
—EREBERBMMNERDAR (‘—E/M The PRC Registered capital of = 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming
(note (if) ( Htiz(i) HK$3,500,000 services
FE 1 & 74%3,500,0007% 7T REEBRABRS
BEHEXRAACGR)ER R (note (i) (#f(i))  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming
HK$1,000,000 services
HE & 71,000,000 7T REXAREBRE
BEEEBCEERLEAERAR The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of management
(note (if) ( #132(i)) RMB6,000,000 consultancy services and
investment holding
FE & A A R #6,000,0007T RUEEBEARBRREER
LREGEBEEER AT (note (if) (Kit(i) The PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Provision of franchise services
RMB500,000
FE & A A R #500,0007T RENEEERS
ERREEALBERAR (ote (i) (Hiz) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming
US$500,000 services
FE # it & A500,000% T REXAREERS
EXEARALBBRAF (note (i) (HzHi) The PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming
US$300,000 services
FE 7 4 4°300,000% T RUZARLBRS
ERMEECEERAAERAA The PRC Registered capital of - 100% Inactive
(note (if) ( Hiit(i)) RMB20,000,000
FE & AR AR #20,000,0007T LEes
BEEESHEACGR)ER AR (note (i) (#i#())  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming
US$150,000 services
FE & A&150,000% T REZARGERS

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in

Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEFREIN HABTHIR)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(il

(iv)

Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),
SST(SH) and £/ —7E 1%, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SST(SH), the directors concluded that the Group has dominant
power to direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on
the basis of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of
respective companies because of contractual arrangements with
the other shareholders of respective companies.

The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 March
2022.

At :

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BEARNEEE B ASST(SHD)  SST(SH) &
EBE—TEB(SSTSH)Z 2 EHBAR) 2
50%%EH ¥ - BN EAER A R H MR
AN WEERAREEHELEESE
N RERAEBEHBEARESS T
&E% E I ESST(SHD) X SST(SH) 2 18 78
JEE

REWBATLN BRI HRBR
EIBRANPINEREECEIHRE
e

ZHBRAREREBEE_T-__F
=t+—BILFEWEH-

H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IRRME

Expressed in Hong Kong doHars unless otherwise indicated)
5B FRIN BB T

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 33 MBAREE &)

Ti’%ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ$gI%ﬁ%ﬁé‘ﬁ?ﬁi%
w=(IEERES] ) 2B AR ZER -

T2z 05 & kBl 55 (£ /] A 7 A

The following table lists out the information relating to
the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interest (“NCI1”). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before BRI 2 &5 o
any inter-company elimination.
2022
—E-__F
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,
BUML SSTIHL RiBL -SRI —EESHNM
SST(S2) SST(HZ)
RE RE
BHE o P iop: PN
XEARE REER RGALE —-EBFRI -—EBWM
NCI percentage FEREZAAL 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$'000

FET TET FET TET TET

208

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

FRBEE
RBEE
yEJR=RE
FRBAR

EE/ (BfE)FE

SRR L REE

Wi
ER(BR)/&H

Eembs/ (BR)

DEEHERES L

(B#) /&

B FERERZBE

KELLERS
Beng 78
KEREERSZ
Lﬁuﬁmui /?gﬁ
RERBESHZ
Reng %48

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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- 39,930 6,832 - -
10,990 4,219 244,274 81,922 3,778
(7,459) (58,397)  (110,684)  (163,048) (23,883)
3,531 (14,248) 140,422 (81,126) (20,105)
706 (3,562) 65,107 (39,752) (9,851)

= 600 1,476,008 = 5

(122) (911) 27,086 (25,502) 3,077

- - 5,382 (77) (255)

(25) (228) 13,272 (12,496) 1,508

- - (9,240) - -

(1) (59) (4,332) 286 -

- = (518) = =

- - (1,487) (643) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BBEEBIN HUBTIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 33 MEBARIESR (©)
2021

—E-—fF
SST(SH) SST(SZ)  SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
BUML SSTHL LB—-%% ®#HBL —EB/8FIN —E80M
SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)
hre: RHE RHE
EgE MWBLH MBAR MEBLF
XBAB RERR LE-TF8 RHAL —T/8RI —EEnM
NCI percentage FERERADLL 20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

Non-current assets ERBEE = 41,437 = 7,672 27 =
Current assets MEBE 10,993 3,620 47502 244,956 107,329 3,719
Current liabilities MEBE (7,340)  (58,394)  (63,920) (123,751)  (162,903)  (26,646)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - - (3,945) (2,065) = =
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (8fE)FE 3,653 (13,337)  (20,363) 126,812 (55,547) (22,927
Carrying amount of NCI FEkERZEHE 731 (3,334) (10,182 59,278 (27,218)  (11,234)
Revenue e - 600 - 1,715,144 1,447 =
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(B1B) /&7 (369) 911) (1,600) 23,089 (656) (113)
Other comprehensive Hiz@mhs/ (BE)

income/(loss) - - 1,150 8,823 (3,383) (677)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI SR ZFERER 2

(B#8) /&7 (74) (228) (800) 11,313 (321) (55)

Dividends paid to NCI B IEERER ZRE - - - - - -
Cash flows from operating REELEE

activities, net Rene 38 1 (59) 3 (26,468) 261 -
Cash flows from investing REKREEEZ

activities, net BenE F8 - - - (489) = =
Cash flows from financing REBEEH

activities, net BenE F8 - - - (1,501) (610) =

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=B e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(% BRI ¢

34

35

B AE TR )

Events after the reporting period

On 11 April 2022, the Group acquired the nominee
membership of The Hong Kong Golf Club, an independent
third party, at a consideration of HK$15,000,000, exclusive
of transaction costs. Details of the acquisition are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 April 2022.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are
described below.

(a) Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant and
equipment after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to previously estimated, or it will write-off technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of these cash flows.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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ERPREE

RZBZZFMA+—B AEBEURE
15,000,000 T (A EIEFER S KA ) W E
EATBRABRE (ABYE=F)ZRA
ABE WESEZHFBEALATAEH
AT _FMNA+—HZAM-

BT ET R

EFEAAKREEHRERRA LA
i it B B 30 A SR B 2 B 7 K O B R
REBREATZE BOEHHEBRA
SEHAE ETREZFHEFLAER
FIEf - ERARE SRR ZBERE
B &R o

@ W&

AEBRERAEANGEERET
ME BBERRBZEFAIERSF
HEABETERR WA RN
BERDEBUZME HERRE
ERAERAFHZBERRED
ARSMmAF REFEFRAEREX
TERAPRBZOTHMELEEARE
1 > fin AT £ A8 4F B B Bl R0 5 Bl fd &t
FHORAEEERETNEER K
HiMECBERRHERERMLEE
B HIFRAEZEE -

b FEERESE

HERmELOREEXEHECEE
BEZREELEU2ERER
EREEFEEREEHERESE
SENRHELAZBREAESRENR
BECERE-EMAEZFRE
MERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEEHS

35 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables
and loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions as well as forward-looking information as at
the end of the reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
transactions is assessed periodically to the effect of all
changes in tax legislation.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
note 15.

35 EiHfETHRAM )

©

@

©

e & 55 5008 K H At R W R IR DA % BB
WERRFSEERE

AEBEEFEEREEBEREE
J& W B 5 R IR B B A R MR IR A I
FREEREMNEEREB HLBE
KERMGE A -AREREERE
BASEREXREEBEESE (BE
BAEBEAZRABR) RE2HH R
B HA R FEORI K B AR IR 5L LA B AT BE
HEBGE - HEERNBE G
Fr - AERERAETERKES
TR Ko Ho At FE U R TR A B B U B 5K
ERABZEEE EtMEERBEM
AETFEHHPE I REERE-

FrigH

EETMEHRBEIREETRS Z
AREBRBEETARBRBERA Z2
BELHEB AEEEEFIHERS
B E  WHRH ERBER
RPZHBRIENAEMRAAR
AP R EETTRIME -

FERE

AEBEM2EFERESIT T
HEMZAKRHEBRAREERE 2
EakrEemENTFREZEEE.
REBELEZHN HEECEEEKRE
EREMFAZRFE UAKE
EMRFEZEE AREFPRE
HRZB8 REREmMIHER
SURT e B fE 5HA BT AR ke fd R
ZERTRETEES

FEZREEDRGEEMBERRE
KM EE16 K EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZREIN BB TIIR)

36 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2022

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts”, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2022 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These amendments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use!

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Annual Improvements HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies?
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them will not have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REVFHE

Particulars of investment property held as at 31 March 2022 isas R-E-Z-—HF=A=1+—HHA2REWEH

follows:

Location

1. House 49,
1 Lo Ping Road,
Casa Marina I,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

i 1

BE
AKX
E R H
BRI
A95% B

(=R UNE

Percentage held

Usage by the Group

R7 rEERFEZES L
Residential 100%

F=

Term

HEH

Medium-term
lease

RHEEA
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. MUI Wai Sum
Mr. CHAN Ka Kin

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Takashi TOGO

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. AU Siu Lun

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Hin Hang

Audit Committee and Remuneration

Committee

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred
Mr. AU Siu Lun

Nomination Committee

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin

Mr. MUI Wai Sum

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred
Mr. AU Siu Lun
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIER

Authorised Representatives

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin
Mr. MUI Wai Sum

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
2nd Floor, Foyer

625 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

Room 2303, 23rd Floor

China Insurance Group Building
141 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer

Office in the Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

RERER

NS
BERLEE

BB

ABEASHMEBABRAA
B

it A

FE2EB2558

o1g

A ERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RREEREEBEITELRBE

B

HIR
EEEF1415
FREEKRE
23182303 %

FERETERNBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Kwun Tong Plaza Branch

G1 Kwung Tong Plaza

68 Hoi Yuen Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia
iISQUARE Supreme Gold Centre
Shop UGO01, iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Website
www.sst-holding.com
Stock Code

8200

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT

Annual Report 2021/22 FE K&

BERNBFELTTE

BEFEERAA
E5

2R ANER1835%
A M L221E

FEFRET

FEEIT (FB)BRAA
NEHE

F R 6855k

BB E5GH
BEESDIT
RIGRITHERAF]

JLEE

4 18 8 FE635E

iISQUAREE B FE $ZUGO1 57 &8
iISQUAREZA £ 32 B A 0

2k
www.sst-holding.com

AL AR

8200



EEEZERARAT
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Room 2303, 23/F, China Insurance Group Building,141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
BHEADIREEHED 14158 P REB A E231803E



	COVER
	CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
	MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	BACK COVER



